BANYULE CRICKET CLUB INC.

Reg No. A0008112 Z ABN 76 525 133 707 www.banyulecc.com.au



ANNUAL REPORT and STATEMENT OF ACCOUNTS SEASON 2024 – 2025

MR. P.J.CARGIN HON. TREASURER MR. B.D.BOWLER PRESIDENT

MR. G.R.PLACE HON. SECRETARY

TABLE OF CONTENTS

OFFICIALS AND OFFICE-BEARERS	3
PRESIDENT'S REPORT	5
TREASURER'S REPORT	6
BOARD OF MANAGEMENT - PLAYING REPORTS	17
COACH'S REPORT	20
SENIOR TROPHY WINNERS 2024-2025 AND CONGRATULATIONS	21
APPRECIATIONS	22
OFF THE FIELD	22
THE CLUB CHAMPIONS	23
THE GRAEME RENSHAW MEDAL	23
DVCA VETERANS REPORT	24
BANYULE 1ST XI (Money Shield)	25
BANYULE 2nd XI (B Grade)	26
BANYULE 3rd XI (E Grade)	27
BANYULE 4th XI (F1 Grade)	28
BANYULE 5th XI (F3 Grade)	29
BANYULE WOMENS Spring Competition NMCA Division 3 (Heather Baillee Shield)	30
BANYULE WOMENS Summer Competition NMCA Division 2 (Lenore Smith Shield)	30
JUNIOR SECTION (SUMMARY & AWARDS)	32
IN2CRICKET / WOOLWORTHS CRICKET BLAST PROGRAM	36
APPENDIX – BANYULE HISTORY & AWARD WINNERS	37
APPENDIX - BANYULE CLUB RECORDS	42
APPENDIX - SPONSORS	44

Cover – Under 16 Blue premiership captain Jack Patena-McCarthy 'on the leap' during the 3rd XI semi-final victory. Photo courtesy of Ralph Kernaghan.



OFFICIALS AND OFFICE-BEARERS

President Mr B.D. Bowler

Honorary Secretary Mr. G.R. Place

Honorary Treasurer Mr. P.J. Cargin

Vice President / Bar Manager Mr. L.A. Willoughby

Junior Co-ordinator Mr. Tim. J. Braddy

Club Welfare Officer & Woolworths

Blast Co-ordinator

Mr. S.M. Pinner

Grant Applications & Board of

Management Rep

Mr G.G. Clapton

Child Safety Officer Mrs. S. Cordina

PlayHQ Co-ordinator & Assistant

Secretary

Mr. B.A. Oliver

Merchandise Co-ordinator Mrs. M. Pinner

Junior Secretary Mr. J.G. McIntyre

Veterans Co-ordinator Mr. G.R. Place

Media Officer Mr. Tom. J Braddy

Assistant Treasurer Mrs. T.C. Oliver

Social Coordinators Mr. L.A. Willoughby / Mr. B.D. Bowler

Coach & First XI Captain Mr. B.L. O'Connor

Senior XI Captains Mr. J.N. Wilson (2nds)

Mr. O.A. McGillion (3rds) Mr. S.M. Pinner (4ths)

Mr. A.D. Howell / Mr. G.D. Renshaw (5ths)

Life Members (* - Deceased)

G. Stott A. Dalziel M.F. Phillips J. Barber B.L. Russell G.P. Barnes D. Johnston* R.J. Lloyd M.J. O'Ryan G. Cross D. Veal (Mrs)* C.M. Carroll D.P. Butterworth L. Drayton R.J. Butler* M.N. Anderson* F. Chowdary* G.R. Place G.N. Chapman L. Richmond (Miss)* G.G. Clapton G.D. Renshaw T.P. Veal P.A. Davis D.H Richmond* M.J. Fraumano M.F. Harte J.D. Veal* N.P. Butterworth* M.J. Veal* H. Anderson (Mrs) B.D. Bowler L.A. Willoughby S.M. Pinner G.J. Anderson G.D. Russell G.W. Anderson W.L. Gibson S.G. Clapton R. Gill* D.R. Veal F.G. Neilson S. Smith* B.L. O'Connor P.J. Barnes J. Richmond (Mrs)* S.D. Butler R.J. Hartnett I.J. Butler (Mrs) J.N. Wilson

	BANYULE CRICKET CLUB - OFFICE BEARERS (Since 1972/73)			
Year	President	Secretary	Treasurer	Captain/Coach
1972-73		F. Scott	G. Cross	M.N. Anderson
		D.H. Richmond	S. Smith	R. Gurney
		D.H. Richmond	S. Smith	M. Oldis
1975-76	M.N. Anderson	D.H. Richmond	S. Smith	G.D. Renshaw
1976-77	A. Henderson	D.H. Richmond	D. Johnston	G.D. Renshaw
1977-78	D. Johnston	D.H. Richmond	P. Scown	G.D. Renshaw
	J.D. Veal	D.H. Richmond	P. Caton	R. Gill
	J.D. Veal	D.H. Richmond	P. Caton	R.J. Lloyd
	J.D. Veal	D.H. Richmond	P. Caton	R.J. Lloyd
1981-82	A. Dalziel	D.H. Richmond	P. Caton	R.J. Lloyd
1982-83	A. Dalziel	D.H. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	R.J. Lloyd
1983-84	G.D. Renshaw	D.H. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	R.J. Lloyd
1984-85	G.D. Renshaw	D.H. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	R.J. Lloyd
1985-86	N.P. Butterworth	D.H. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	G.W. Anderson
1986-87	N.P. Butterworth	D.H. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	G.W. Anderson
1987-88	R.J. Lloyd	D.H. Richmond	M.J. Fraumano	G.W. Anderson
	R.J. Lloyd	D.H. Richmond	T.P. Veal	G.J. Anderson
	J.D. Veal	D.H. Richmond	M.J. Veal	G.J. Anderson
1990-91	J.D. Veal	D.H. Richmond	M.J. Veal	G.J. Anderson
1991-92	J.D. Veal	D.H. Richmond	D.M. Gazzola	G.J. Anderson
1992-93	N.P.Butterworth	D.H. Richmond	D.M. Gazzola	G.J. Anderson / R.D. McKinlay
1993-94	N.P.Butterworth	D.H. Richmond	D.M. Gazzola	R.D. McKinlay
1994-95	G.J. Anderson	D.H. Richmond	D.M. Gazzola	R.D. McKinlay
1995-96	G.J. Anderson	D.H. Richmond	D.M. Gazzola	R.D. McKinlay
1996-97	G.J. Anderson	D.H. Richmond	D. Rumble	J. Canestra
1997-98	G.R. Place	W.L. Gibson	D. Rumble	G.J. Anderson
1998-99	G.R. Place	W.L. Gibson	D. Rumble	G.J. Anderson
1999-00	G.R. Place	W.L. Gibson	M.F. Phillips	A. Gannon
2000-01	G.R. Place	W.L. Gibson	M.F. Phillips	P.J. Barnes / A. Gannon
2001-02		T.P. Veal	M.F. Phillips	B.L. O'Connor
2002-03	G.J. Anderson	T.P. Veal	M.F. Phillips	B.L. O'Connor
2003-04	G.J. Anderson	T.P. Veal	M.F. Phillips	B.L. O'Connor
2004-05	G.J. Anderson	T.P. Veal	M.F. Phillips	P.J. Barnes / A. Gannon
2005-06	G.J. Anderson	T.P. Veal	M.F. Phillips	M.A. Butera
2006-07	G.J. Anderson	T.P. Veal	D.P.Butterworth	M.A. Butera
2007-08	M.F. Phillips	P.J. Barnes	D.P.Butterworth	J.N. Wilson
-	M.F. Phillips	P.J. Barnes	D.P.Butterworth	J.N. Wilson/ B.L. O'Connor/ D.P.Butterworth
2009-10	M.F. Phillips	P.J. Barnes	D.P.Butterworth	B.L. O'Connor / D.L. Barnes
2010-11	M.J. Asbury	P.J. Barnes	D.P.Butterworth	B.L. O'Connor / L.D. Dahl
	M.J. Asbury	P.J. Barnes	D.P.Butterworth	J.N. Wilson / L.D. Dahl
-	M.J. Asbury	P.J. Barnes	D.P.Butterworth	G.D. Butterworth
2013-14	M.J. Asbury	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	J.N. Wilson / G.D. Butterworth
2014-15	·	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	G.D. Butterworth / R.J. Hartnett
2015-16	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	R.J. Hartnett
2016-17	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	R.J. Hartnett
2017-18	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	R.J. Hartnett
2018-19	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	H.E. Tyler
2019-20	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	H.E. Tyler
2020-21	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Barnes	S.G. Clapton	H.E. Tyler
2021-22	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Barnes	P.J. Cargin	D.A. Pybus / N.P. Murray
2022-23	B.D. Bowler	G.G. Clapton	P.J. Cargin	D.A. Pybus / N.P. Murray
2023-24	B.D. Bowler	G.R. Place	P.J. Cargin	B.L. O'Connor
2024-25	B.D. Bowler	G.R. Place	P.J. Cargin	B.L. O'Connor

PRESIDENT'S REPORT

Season 2024/25, a season of consolidation in Seniors Men's Competitions, the Juniors going from strength to strength and we launched our first ever Women's Team into the NMCA competition. The ladies in true Banyule fashion acquitted themselves exceptionally well, the result being a Premiership in our first ever season

Whilst no Senior premierships were achieved our 3rd XI were runners. Up and 3 of our 4 other teams finished the season in 5th position just outside of the finals. A great achievement.

To the committee it was a pleasure working with you all this season, and I thank you all for your efforts. A special thanks to Geoff "Jedda" Place whom not only fulfilled the role of secretary but also took on the responsibility of keeping the rooms clean and tidy for the entire season. You are a great Banyule person Jedda Boy and your deeds throughout the season were greatly appreciated.

Thursday night "Happy Meals Crew' again a stella season in the Kitchen (just stop the Pres from burning the chips) and we would have had a perfect slate. It's the work of you guys (Happy, Simon, Ando, Hollywood, Clappo, and Jed the cleaning inspector) that make our Thursday nights so enjoyable and helps foster our Banyule Family club environment. Nothing better than looking across the room on a Thursday night and 35-40 people tucking into the great fare produced out of the kitchen - My sincere thanks.

To Lucas Willoughby aka "Hollywood, Twosey or Wooda" your efforts don't go unnoticed. The Bar runs with aplomb, and you are always first to volunteer when the extra work needs to be done. Lucas my sincere thanks for the season past.

Tim Braddy - Our Junior Co-ordinator - without whom we would not be the biggest and best junior program in the DVCA - we are the envy of every other club in the competition. I'm often asked by my peers at Club President meetings how come we are so successful, and the answer is simple good, passionate people who have a club first interest make the Banyule junior program the success it is. From Steve Pinner who coordinates our Blast program right through to all the coaches of our Junior Teams, I and the club thank you all for your efforts.

To Aaron Lambert the recipient of the Marty Veal award for the work undertaken with our Junior program. With the support of the BCC committee you got 3 girls teams on the field along with the successful launch of our first ever Women's Team - A massive congratulations and thank you for the season.

To Brent O'Connor we thank you for your stella efforts again this season, a proud and passionate Bear you will search hard to find one better. Not only Captaining and coaching but you also took out the bowling award for the competition in Money Shield. Thanks again for a stellar season.

Once again I must thank my predecessor Graham Clapton, whom I probably lean on a little too much but your knowledge and level headedness was often used during the season. Now you are the Chair of the Board of Management for the 3 clubs I look forward to working with you as we bring the clubs even closer together.

I would like to thank our three major sponsors for their support this year, Physiolife, Foodworks East Ivanhoe and Brolec. Our Silver sponsors Barr'd, Bonola Automotive and Place Built, a big thanks also for your support again this year.

A thanks also to the members of the coterie group 'The Corden". Once again some fantastic lunches with great guest speakers, hopefully we will grow "The Corden" year in year out.

To all members of the Banyule Cricket Club I thank you for your support throughout the season, it's you who make this club such a great place to be a part of.

Finally a Special Big Thank you to my Family. To Louise I thank you for your ongoing support throughout the year, again you were my voice of reason and great sounding board to get an outside perspective on many things cricket related. Jackson for coaching the U/16's this year and both Jackson and Nicholas for providing me feedback from a younger persons perspective, something I greatly appreciated.

Season 2025/26 promises to be an exciting year with the inclusion of another 2 clubs from the NMCA (Old Ivanhoe and Keon Park) - this will be a definitive year for the club.

Brad Bowler

President

TREASURER'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF THE BANYULE CRICKET CLUB INC,

The final result for the financial year ending 30 April 2025 was a deficit of \$11,598. This is a slight increase of \$970 on the prior years' deficit of \$10,628.

Revenue

Membership revenue decreased by \$9,135. This decrease was largely due to the reduction in the number of senior teams, with less senior playing members.

# Financial Members	2024/25	2023/24	Change
Junior/Student/Concession	183	193	-10
Senior	71 *	83	-12
Vets	17*	19	-2

There were a number of Vets and Junior members who also played as part of the 6 Senior Mens' teams and T20 team during the year. Does not double count these.

Bar, Canteen & Dinners recorded a \$8,801 gross loss for the year. This was predominately driven by the late receipt of Foodworks invoices totalling \$11,126 that related to the prior financial year. Excluding these costs we would have made a surplus of \$2,325. Foodworks have changed their processes and management recently and this delay will not occur in future.

Sponsorship (net of function costs) was slightly up on last year however the second Cordon Event did not occur until after the end of the financial year.

Social & Fundraising Revenue was slightly up on last year driven by higher fundraising from the Toyota Good for Cricket raffle and slightly higher returns from our social events.

Grant income of \$21,639 provided some important income that supported some perimeter fencing mesh and a deposit on the new scoreboard.

The **Net Merchandising cost** was lower than last year because last year we provided free player shirts and some apparel to players with our new sponsors.

Expenses

Cricket expenditure was slightly lower this year, with lower player payments and incentives compared to the prior year. Also, expenditure on cricket balls was also lower with less senior teams.

Buildings and Grounds costs were significantly higher, predominately driven by the deposits paid on the scoreboard which was offset in the grants income.

Administration costs were slightly lower this year, with lower donations expense this year.

Depreciation and Amortisation is in line with the prior year and relates to the bowling machine, concrete slab, marquee and synthetic grass that were purchased three years ago. These capital costs are being expensed over the next 5 years of estimated useful life.

Despite recording a deficit for the year, predominately driven by the late receipt of the FoodWorks invoices relating to the prior year, the club remains in a sound financial position with \$35,987 of Cash at Bank. Thanks to all the captains and to the Junior and Senior Committee members who ensured the season ran successfully.

I would again like to thank Thea Oliver for her fantastic bookkeeping support again this year. This will be my last year of Treasurer, with Oliver McGillion taking over the role for next year.

Looking forward to another successful cricket season in FY25/26.

Peter Cargin

Treasurer

Banyule Cricket Club Inc Financial Statements for the year ended 30th April 2025

Banyule Cricket Club 2024/25 Season				
	Current Year 24 - 25	Prior Year 23 - 24	Movement	
Net Revenue	\$86,993	\$85,298	1,696	2%
Membership	\$44,642	\$53,777	-9,135	-17%
Senior	\$17,949	\$22,485	-4,536	-20%
Junior	\$26,693	\$31,293	-4,600	-15%
Sponsorship	\$29,416	\$27,310	2,106	8%
Grants	\$21,639	\$6,420	15,219	237%
Social & Fundraising	\$4,483	\$2,309	2,174	94%
Bar, Canteen & Dinners	-\$8,801	\$11,723	-20,524	-175%
Sales	\$38,840	\$29,776	9,064	30%
Purchases	-\$47,641	-\$18,053	-29,588	164%
Merchandise & Equipment Sales	-\$4,386	-\$16,242	11,856	73%
Other Revenue			0	
Expenditure	-\$98,591	-\$95,926	-2,665	3%
Cricket	-\$51,150	-\$54,009	2,859	5%
Buildings & Grounds	-\$39,052	-\$32,375	-6,677	-21%
	Ç33,03E	432,373	0,077	
Administration & Misc	-\$4,709	-\$5,862	1,154	20%
Depreciation & Amortisation	-\$3,680	-\$3,680	-0	0%
Surplus/(Deficit)	-\$11,598	-\$10,628	970	-9%

Banyule Cricket Club Inc. Balance sheet for the year ended 30 April 2025

S \$ Asset Current assets 3 35,987 54,718 Accounts receivable and other debtors 4 0 0 Inventory & Merchandise 5 5,715 2,426 Total current assets 41,702 57,144 Non-current assets 41,702 57,144 Property, plant, equipment 6 3,884 5,826 Leasehold Improvements 7 3,476 5,214 Total non-current assets 7,360 11,040 Total assets 49,061 68,184 Current liabilities 5 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 0 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 7,525 0 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 60,658 60,658			2025	2024
Current assets Cash and cash equivalents 3 35,987 54,718 Accounts receivable and other debtors 4 0 0 Inventory & Merchandise 5 5,715 2,426 Total current assets 41,702 57,144 Non-current assets Property, plant, equipment 6 3,884 5,826 Leasehold Improvements 7 3,476 5,214 Total non-current assets 7,360 11,040 Total assets 49,061 68,184 Liabilities Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 0 0 Non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658			\$	\$
Cash and cash equivalents 3 35,987 54,718 Accounts receivable and other debtors 4 0 0 Inventory & Merchandise 5 5,715 2,426 Total current assets 41,702 57,144 Non-current assets	Asset			
Accounts receivable and other debtors 4 0 0 Inventory & Merchandise 5 5,715 2,426 Total current assets 41,702 57,144 Non-current assets 3,884 5,826 Property, plant, equipment 6 3,884 5,826 Leasehold Improvements 7 3,476 5,214 Total non-current assets 7,360 11,040 Total assets 49,061 68,184 Liabilities Current liabilities Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current liabilities 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Current assets			
Inventory & Merchandise 5 5,715 2,426 Total current assets 41,702 57,144 Non-current assets \$	Cash and cash equivalents	3	35,987	54,718
Non-current assets 41,702 57,144 Property, plant, equipment 6 3,884 5,826 Leasehold Improvements 7 3,476 5,214 Total non-current assets 7,360 11,040 Total assets 49,061 68,184 Liabilities State of term borrowings 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 0 0 Non-current liabilities 0 0 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 0 7,525 0	Accounts receivable and other debtors	4	0	•
Non-current assets Property, plant, equipment 6 3,884 5,826 Leasehold Improvements 7 3,476 5,214 Total non-current assets 7,360 11,040 Total assets 49,061 68,184 Liabilities Current liabilities Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current liabilities 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Inventory & Merchandise	5	5,715	2,426
Property, plant, equipment 6 3,884 5,826 Leasehold Improvements 7 3,476 5,214 Total non-current assets 7,360 11,040 Total assets 49,061 68,184 Liabilities Current liabilities Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Total current assets		41,702	57,144
Leasehold Improvements 7 3,476 5,214 Total non-current assets 7,360 11,040 Total assets 49,061 68,184 Liabilities Current liabilities Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Non-current assets			
Total non-current assets 7,360 11,040 Total assets 49,061 68,184 Liabilities Current liabilities Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current liabilities 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Property, plant, equipment	6	3,884	5,826
Total assets 49,061 68,184 Liabilities Current liabilities Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current liabilities 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Leasehold Improvements	7	3,476	5,214
Liabilities Current liabilities 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current liabilities 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Total non-current assets		7,360	11,040
Current liabilities Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current liabilities 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity 8 0 7,525 Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Total assets		49,061	68,184
Trade creditors and other payables 8 0 7,525 Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current liabilities 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658				
Short term borrowings 9 0 0 Total current liabilities 0 7,525 Non-current liabilities 0 0 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Trade creditors and other payables	8	0	7,525
Non-current liabilities 0 7,525 Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 0	• •	9	0	
Long-term borrowings 10 0 0 Total non-current liabilities 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	•		0	7,525
Total non-current liabilities 0 0 Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Non-current liabilities			
Total liabilities 0 7,525 Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Long-term borrowings	10	0	0
Net assets 49,061 60,658 Equity 8 49,061 60,658 Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Total non-current liabilities		0	0
Equity 49,061 60,658	Total liabilities		0	7,525
Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Net assets		49,061	60,658
Retained surplus 49,061 60,658	Equity			
Net worth 49,061 60,658	Retained surplus		49,061	60,658
	Net worth		49,061	60,658

Banyule Cricket Club Inc. Income statement for the year ended 30 April 2025

		2025 \$	2024 \$
Income			
Revenue	11	158,395	145,857
Expense			
Cost of sales		-71,401	-60,560
Cricket costs		-51,150	-54,009
Building & Grounds costs		-39,052	-32,375
Administration & Misc		-4,709	-5,862
Depreciation and amortisation expenses		-3,680	-3,680
Total expenditure		-169,992	-156,486
Surplus/(deficit) for the year		-11,597	-10,628

Banyule Cricket Club Inc. Statement of changes in equity or the year ended 30 April 2025

	2025 Retained surplus \$	2024 Retained surplus \$
Balance at 1 May 2023	71,286	81,057
Surplus/(deficit) for the year	-10,628	-9,770
Balance at 30 April 2024	60,658	71,286
Balance at 1 May 2024	60,658	71,286
Surplus/(deficit) for the year	-11,597	-10,628
Balance at 30 April 2025	49,061	60,658

BANYULE CRICKET CLUB INC ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Banyule Cricket Club Inc. Statement of cash flows for the year ended 30 April 2025

		2025 \$	2024 \$
Cash from operating activities		·	•
Receipts from customers		158,395	145,857
Payments to suppliers and employees		-177,126	-142,811
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities	12(b)	-18,731	3,047
Net increase/(decrease) in cash held		-18,731	3,047
Cash at beginning of financial year		54,718	51,671
Cash at end of financial year	12(a)	35,987	54,717

Banyule Cricket Club Inc.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2025

Statement of significant accounting policies

Statement of compliance

The committee has determined that the incorporated association is not a reporting entity because there are no users dependent on general purpose financial statements. The financial report is a special purpose financial report which has been prepared in order to satisfy the financial reporting requirements of the *Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012*.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with following Australian Accounting Standards:

AASB 101	Presentation of Financial Statements
AASB 107	Statement of Cash Flows
AASB 108	Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
AASB 1031	Materiality
AASB 1048	Interpretation of Standards
AASB 1054	Australian Additional Disclosures

Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and are based on historical cost and do not take into account changing money values except where specifically stated.

Statement of significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment

Each class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Property

Freehold land and buildings are shown at their fair value, being the amount for which an asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length transaction.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairments losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the committee members to ensure that it is not in excess of the recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows that will be received from the assets' employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

Banyule Cricket Club Inc.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2025

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets, excluding freehold land is depreciated on a straightline basis over the asset's useful life to the association commencing from the time the asset is held ready to use.

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable asset are:

Plant and equipment

20%

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the carrying amount. These gains and losses are recognised immediately in profit and loss.

When revalued assets are sold, amounts included in the revaluation surplus relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.

Impairment

At each reporting date the committee assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has been impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the higher of the asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset's carrying value. Any excess of the asset's carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed to the income statement.

Income tax

The association is a not-for-profit organisation and is exempt from income tax under section 50-45 of the *Income Tax Assessment Act 1997*.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits, held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities cash within three months.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Donation income is recognised when the entity obtains control over the funds, which is generally at the time of receipt.

Inventory

Inventory held for sale are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Goods and services tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised inclusive of GST as the association is not required to be registered for GST. Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of GST.

Banyule Cricket Club Inc.

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2025

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to prepare for their intended use or sale are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in income in the period in which they are incurred.

Trade creditors and other payables

Trade and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period for goods and services received by the association during the reporting period, which remain unpaid. The balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days on recognition of the liability.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

	2025	2024
	\$	\$
3. Cash and cash equivalents		
Cash on hand	0	0
Cash at bank	35,987	54,718
	35,987	54,718
4. Account receivables and other debtors		
Trade receivables	0	0
	0	0
5. Inventory		
Bar Stock on Hand	0	2,426
	0	2,426
6. Property, Plant, Equipment		
Major Equipment	9,710	9,710
Less accumulated depreciation	-5,826	-3,884
Total Major Equipment	3,884	5,826
7. Leashold Improvements		
Leasehold Improvements	8,689	8,689
Less accumulated depreciation	-5,214	-3,476
Total Leasehold improvements	3,476	5,214
8. Trade and other payables		
Trade creditors	0	7,525
	0	7,525

	2025	2024
9. Revenue	\$	\$
Grants	21,639	6,420
Fundraiser & Social	11,344	11,267
Sponsorship	32,810	33,750
Merchandise	9,120	10,867
Membership	44,642	53,777
Bar, Canteen, Dinners	38,840	29,776
Other	0	0
Total Revenue	158,395	145,857
10. Cash flow information		
Reconciliation of cash		
Cash at the end of financial year as shown in cash flow		
statement is reconciled to items in the statement of financial		
position:		
Cash and cash equivalents	35,987	54,718
Bank overdraft	0	0
a)	35,987	54,718
B		
Reconciliation of net cash provided by operating activities to surplus		
Surplus (deficit) from ordinary	44 507	40.000
activities	-11,597	-10,628
Non-cash flows in profit		
Depreciation	3,680	3,680
Changes in assets and		
liabilities:		
Increase/(decrease) in	0	0
receivables Increase/(decrease) in inventories	-3,289	2,470
Increase/(decrease) in payables	-5,269 -7,525	7,525
	-18,731	3,047
Net cash provided by operating activities b)	-10,731	3,047

11. Related parties

There were no related party transactions conducted during the year.

Schedule 1

Regulations 18, 19 and 20

Form 1

Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012 Sections 94(2)(b), 97(2)(b) and 100(2)(b)

Annual statements give true and fair view of financial position of incorporated association

We,	and	,being members of
the Committee of the Bar	nyule Cricket Club Inc , certify that –	
The statements attached	to this certificate give a true and fair	r view of the financial position of the Banyule
Cricket Club during and at	the end of the financial year of the	association ending on 30 th April 2025.
Signed:		
Dated:		
Signed:		
Dated:		

BANYULE CRICKET CLUB INC ANNUAL REPORT 2024-25

Submission of financial statements to annual general meeting – incorporated associations

Associations Incorporation Reform Act 2012

Sections 94(3), 97(3) and 100(3)

I, Peter Cargin, being a member of the committee of the Banyule Cricket Club certify that –
"I attended the annual general meeting of the Banyule Cricket Club held on the 11 th August 2025 and the financial statements of the association for the financial year ending on 30 th April 2025 were submitted to the members of the association at that general meeting."
Signed:
Date:

BOARD OF MANAGEMENT - PLAYING REPORTS

After entering 7 senior sides in the 2023/24 season a practical re-set was arrived at as we approached the 2024/25 season. As a club we were significantly disappointed in the amount forfeits we encountered in our 6th & 7th XI's in 2023/24 which were entered into the one-day grade competitions (G Grade). We made representations to the DVCA that incorporated the idea of clubs losing points in their shield grade were a lower XI to forfeit.

Unfortunately, the competition appeared to prioritise the receipt of fines from the offending clubs rather than actively seeking to change behaviours that would promote the playing of intended fixtures. It was then determined that we would prioritise the placement of our playing XI's across the grades that are not exclusively one day grades in the hope that we would avoid the issues of 2023/24. The club ultimately determined that it would enter 5 sides and this was based also on an estimation of playing numbers as they presented in the lead up to the season.

As it turned out we could have certainly from the end of October onwards, comfortably entered a 6th side and we approached the DVCA with this mind before the Christmas break. Our offer to play for no premiership points in one of the lower grades that already had a scheduled bye was turned down and we then found ourselves in the strange situation of having to rotate (rest and manage!) anywhere from 10-15 players each week after players surfaced post exams, spring carnival and whatever other distractions were encountered in the early part of the season. Hindsight would suggest that in the seasons ahead we would be better served nominating an additional side and incurring a token fine on the rare occasion we may not field a side.

As in previous seasons the managing of our numbers requires an enormous amount of administrative organisation, from registration, merchandise and not to mention commitment from players at various stages of their cricketing journeys. It also requires enormous energy from the coaching group who must manage this and the expectations that go with it. To have upwards of 50 plus players training on any given senior night was an organisational challenge, albeit a pleasant one for the future of the club.

Particular mention must go to the senior coach Brent O'Connor and his 'numbers man' James McIntyre who handled this superbly. They were also supported by Jack Arandt and Jeff Wilson and they all ensured cricketing aspects were communicated and decisions and processes were well understood. About the only thing they couldn't control was the theft of copper which rendered our training facilities inoperable on a couple of occasions during the season.

The 2024-25 season represented an opportunity for the 1st XI to consolidate on the progress made after a year in Money Shield. There was a degree of optimism as Money Shield has generally shown itself to be a very even competition over the past few seasons. Recruitment was limited to Kieran Keating from Montmorency and it was felt that any areas of deficiency would be covered off by the development of some of the younger returning players, but nothing is given and so it proved over the course of a fluctuating season.

How then to measure the start of the season? It wasn't until Round 6 in late November that a win was recorded and yet things never quite felt as dire as that. A narrow and ultimately season defining loss to Lalor when a controversial 'non catch' was claimed and upheld, was then followed by two narrow losses to Rosebank and Lower Eltham. The only really poor game was a trouncing received at the hands of Eltham in Round 2 and yet in late November a place at the foot of the ladder was a reality that had to be owned.

A solid run of performances saw three wins and a washout draw follow, and the mood at the season break was far more buoyant. The turnaround in performance was collective but the insertion of returning wicket-keeper Ryan Hartnett played no small part in this. For a group that has a somewhat passive personality type, his 'alpha' competitiveness coupled with his ability to communicate within the group was a vital support mechanism to Brent and for the team more broadly. It was no coincidence that the team was to only lose one of the six games he played.

The January resumption of fixtures, with only a game separating a finals berth or relegation battle set up an intriguing final five fixtures. Speculation suggested three wins would be enough. What followed was two wins, two draws (one weather effected and the other by virtue of vandals), and a poor loss to Montmorency. The upshot was a 5th place finish and a miss from finals by the narrowest of percentage margins. Having bowled eventual finalists Plenty out for 89 in the final round, it was later calculated that if we had passed them 3 wickets down that would have been enough to finish 4th. Unfortunately, a tense hard fought victory score of 8/90 lead by Jack Arandt was not enough to advance the season.

Only Julian Drohan (256 Runs), Brent O'Connor (250 Runs), and Connor Braniff (224 Runs) exceeded 200 runs for the season. All at various times suggested greater output but that is also an observation that could be

made for others in the batting line up along the way. Two players under 20 years of age in Jake Lee and Kieran Keating both made significant steps as the season progressed and can point to key contributions in the run chase against eventual premiers Rosebank, and individual performances of significant maturity against Greensborough and Montmorency, respectively. Justin Poyser also played with refreshing maturity when called upon later in the season.

The bowling is well regarded across the competition and offered points of difference. Jeremy Mahar (24 wickets) bowled a significant number of overs and led the attack in all conditions and never flagged. Brent O'Connor (18 wickets) continued to offer control and penetration whilst managing the odd niggle and he is to be congratulated for winning the Money Shield bowling award. Of the others, Leo Hobson-Nicholls (13 wickets) is a quick left armer who worried the opposition with his pace and has enormous scope for improvement. Jack Arandt with a pragmatic thought process to spin bowling, bowled with good economy particularly in the one-day games.

Congratulations should also go out to Kieran Keating, Jaxon McIntyre, and Tarun Ohri who all made their 1st XI debuts for the club during the season.

The **2nd XI** in B Grade under the leadership of the experienced Jeff Wilson (and subsequently Justin Poyser and Cam Ataryniw) were anticipated to again challenge strongly at the level after consistent finals appearances in the recent past. The challenge as always for a club 2nd XI is to gain results at the same time as having the depth of talent ready to compete at 1st XI level. At times that challenge was comfortably met but unfortunately poor results in the early part of the season meant that it always felt like the side was playing catch up when it came to playing finals.

The response after not registering a victory in the first five rounds was to not register a loss in the next five games. This included an outright victory over a struggling Epping and this set the season up nicely to play finals. What followed was a poor loss to lowly Diamond Creek, and a loss to Rosanna when chasing a target, the local council found it timely to top dress the ground in the middle of a game! A fantastic victory followed against finals bound Riverside, and so it came down to needing to defeat Plenty and rely on other results. As it happened other results did not fall our way but nor did we play well enough to defeat Plenty making the final round fixture moot.

The batting was not always reliable in output but in Wahid Kazi (391 Runs) had a very consistent opener. Dropped to the 3rd XI early in the year he responded with an unbeaten 84* to earn promotion, and then a glut of runs followed. A thoughtful and determined cricketer who also sacrificed his game to keep wickets later in the year, he thoroughly deserved the Club Championship award. Justin Poyser (327 Runs) in 7 games was also an influential contributor both with his runs scored and also when captaining. A long time player at the club he finally scored a first ever 100 to the delight of all, and now that he is through that barrier could do so more frequently going forward. Liam Adair, Ryder McMurray, and Jake Lee from the younger co-hort also contributed significantly on occasions.

Daniel Murray (23 Wickets) with his hard-spun leg spin got good players out too often indicating he could and should aim to play higher. Cam Ataryniw (18 Wickets) always bowled with spirit and is at times awkward to combat. Anish Jadhav (16 Wickets) took a rush of wickets later in the year after returning from exams, and with his batting ability was close to 1st XI cricket. Tarun Ohri (10 Wickets), in limited games was also a real point of difference with his pace and energy and has been a significant addition to the playing group given that he arrived as a parent seeking the odd game.

A real positive aspect of this XI was its composition which saw 10 players aged 15-18 playing at various stages. There are some seriously talented players amongst them and often these players were influential within games which is a credit to them. In particular congratulations should go to Ellio Conceicao, Liam Adair, Ryder McMurray, and Jack Patena-McCarthy who played 48 games between them in the 2nd XI and also participated in the Under 16 Blue premiership team. Credit also to Jamie Marks who kept wickets very well and has made fantastic progress over the past seasons.

After competing against other teams 2nd XI's in D Grade the previous season the club sought to have the **3rd** XI play in E Grade. This was also done when factoring in expected player depth. This looked a particularly wise strategy when, like the 1sts and 2nds, it took until Round 5 to register a victory. What however followed was a sensationally consistent run of form that was to see only one further loss until Grand Final day. The side was again led by the mature and understated Ollie McGillion. Around him were experienced performers at the level including Daryl Kennedy, James McIntyre, Paul Davis, Paul McMurray, and Peter Cargin so that when the turn in performance came it was likely to be sustainable.

Highlights were plentiful, but three narrow victories against Panton Hill, including a one wicket victory in a semi-final, and beating Lower Plenty immediately after the mid-season break were stand outs. The batting

was well performed with Ollie McGillion (338 Runs), Daryl Kennedy (300), Simon Adair (269), and Tom Braddy (264) all exceeding 250 Runs. In addition, Liam O'Connor made a high-quality century against Riverside to complement his developing wicket-keeping. The bowling was consistent and the highlight was the development of Ryan Forbes who took 21 wickets at the level and also played a handful of games in the 2nd XI. Ollie McGillion (15 Wickets), Peter Cargin (18), and Paul Davis (13) all provided excellent support.

The development shown by Ryan Forbes as an opening bowler and Tom Braddy as an opening batsman was particularly encouraging. Though Tom trailed off slightly, he made enormous improvement from the year before and showed he is a quick learner. Both these boys and Tom Kuriakose and Liam O'Connor who also played in the Grand Final are excellent young men who offer the club a really bright future. Aryan Mittal who played a handful of games at this level is also a serious talent for his age (15) and can expect to play higher in the years to come. Congratulations should also go to Daryl Kennedy for his first ever century and to Simon Adair for his commendable fighting half century in the tense semi-final victory.

The **4th XI** under Steve Pinner (and Geoff Place), played in F1 and continued the variable trend by finishing at the foot of the table for the second year of the last three (with a Grand Final finish separating the two). This side was one of two Banyule sides in F Grade and this F1 Grade appeared to have a number of stronger XI's and often other clubs 3rd XI's. At the outset it was hoped that this side would be competitive and generally it was even if wins were scarce. The competitiveness was highlighted by the fact that the side was only bowled out twice during the season and on both of these occasions the score had already exceeded 200. On the flip side we were only able to take 69 wickets across 12 games. Defeating finals bound Research late in the year showed what was possible but too often variable availabilities throughout the club impacted this side the most.

The batting was highlighted by Steve Pinner (453 Runs) which included five half centuries and a run of 54, 90*, 92, & 70 to start the year. With the volume and tempo of his runs he was to deservedly win the F1 batting award and the Graeme Renshaw Medal. Of the others only Ash Gibson (154) exceeded 100 runs. In brief appearances (10 games between them) Paul McMurray, Aryan Mittal, Brett Oliver, & Jack Patena-McCarthy all contributed. With 39 players cycling through the side during the season it was often a case that the bowling depth was tested. When playing Josh Kapsalis showed undoubted skill and a good temperament with his left arm mediums. Jahan Dhruve bowled with at times with deceptive pace to complement his batting and wicket-keeping talents. Ash Gibson and Geoff Place performed well when also called upon in a tough year for F1 bowlers.

The 5th XI again played in F3 and was led by the experienced pairing of Alistair Howell and Graeme Renshaw. The side was a mix of an older playing group who prefer Saturday cricket over Veterans cricket (or combine the two) complemented by a mix of junior players and those of irregular commitments. It, like the other F Grade side also provided opportunities for several father-son combinations to play together. This side was highly competitive throughout the season and somewhat unlucky not to play finals after losing several games by very narrow margins. The season began encouragingly with four wins in the opening six rounds highlighted by high quality centuries to Garrick Melton and Thomas Elmer in wins over Lower Plenty and Riverside and combined five wicket hauls by David Veal and Brett Oliver in near unplayable conditions against Laurimar. Unfortunately, four narrow losses was a cruel way to end a season that contained many positives.

The batting was led by David Veal (335 Runs). David had an outstanding season and in partnership with Samuel Dennis frequently gave the side a solid platform to work from. In addition to his batting output David Veal (12 Wickets) was a good contributor with the ball. Of the others Brett Oliver (12) bowled with good economy but the highlights both were younger players Hayden McMurray (9) and Ayaan Ohri (7). Both showed much promise and with another Under 16 team member in Sahil Mittal, there is a lot to like about the young cricketers coming through. Significantly those three mentioned are also very good with bat in hand. In limited games fast bowler Brennan Davis and leg spinning all-rounder Mitch Mckellar both showed enough to suggest they will play higher in the near future.

As always it is a big club to manage but we have much to look forward given the platform established by Coach Brent O'Connor. A focus on retention, development and well targeted recruitment will help ensure future success.

Brett Oliver

On behalf of Match Committee

COACH'S REPORT

As we draw the curtain on another eventful and rewarding cricket season, I'd like to take a moment to reflect on the year that's been and acknowledge the many people who helped make it all possible.

This season brought its share of highs and challenges, but above all, it showcased the resilience, commitment, and spirit that defines our club. Whether it was on the field, at training, or behind the scenes, the collective effort has been outstanding.

First and foremost, a heartfelt thank you to our club president Brad Bowler whose leadership continues to set the tone for everything we do. Your support, presence, and clear passion for the club have been unwavering, and we're incredibly lucky to have you at the helm.

To my fellow captains, Jeff Wilson, Ollie McGillion, Steve Pinner, and Alistair Howell thank you for your dedication, game-day preparation, and the way you've led your teams with integrity and drive. Each of you brought something unique to the role, and it's been a privilege to work alongside you. Your leadership made a real difference this season.

To the committee, your tireless work behind the scenes deserves special recognition. From organising match logistics to managing finances, events, sponsorship, and ground preparation you are the engine room of this club. Without your efforts, we simply wouldn't function, let alone thrive.

To all the players, families, and supporters, thank you for your time, energy, and passion. Your contributions whether cheering from the sidelines, helping at club events, or simply showing up are deeply appreciated and never go unnoticed.

As coach/captain, I've been proud to witness the growth of our players, both individually and as a team. From breakthrough performances to personal milestones and memorable matches, there's a lot to celebrate and build upon as we head into the offseason.

Let's use this break to rest, reflect, and recharge because the new season will be here before we know it, and with it, fresh opportunities to improve, compete, and enjoy the game we all love.

Congratulations to all the winners of individual awards, you obviously have worked extremely hard and are well deserved winners.

Thank you again to everyone involved for making this club not just a team, but a community

Brent O'Connor Senior Club Coach

VALE -

The Club was deeply saddened to note the passing of **John Veal** — One of the club's founding fathers and Life Members passed away in August 2024. The Big Guy as he was affectionately remembered was one of the true gentleman our game. John was a past President, Captain, and Santa Claus for decades who helped set the foundations and standards that make this club the fantastic place it is today. Our condolences to John's children and grandchildren, most of whom graced the playing fields of Banyule including Chris, David, Tim, Martin, Jack, and Spencer. The club is forever grateful for the contribution John made to this club.

SENIOR TROPHY WINNERS 2024-2025 AND CONGRATULATIONS

	Batting	Bowling	Fielding Award
1 st XI	Julian Drohan	Brent O'Connor	Jake Lee
2 nd XI	Justin Poyser	Cameron Ataryniw	Cameron Ataryniw
3 rd XI	Daryl Kennedy	Ryan Forbes	Liam O'Connor
4 th XI	Steve Pinner	Joshua Kapsalis	Darcy Pinner
5 th XI	David Veal	Brett Oliver	Hayden McMurray

	1
Don Richmond Perpetual Shield (Lifetime Service)	-
Banyule Club Champion Trophy	Waheed Kazi
Graeme Renshaw Best & Fairest Award	Steve Pinner
Greg Anderson Outstanding Achievement Award	Graham Clapton
Martin Veal Memorial Award (Junior Cricket)	Aaron Lambert
Geoff Place Medal (Vets Best & Fairest)	Hamish Wood
DVCA Awards	Brent O'Connor – Money Shield Bowling Ave (18 Wickets @ 14.11) Steve Pinner – F1 Batting Average (453 Runs @ 64.71) Brent O'Connor – Money Shield Team of the Year
Banyule Life Membership	-

Centuries	Julian Drohan (Money Shield) Justin Poyser (B Grade) Daryl Kennedy (E Grade) Liam O'Connor (E Grade) Garrick Melton (F3 Grade) Thomas Elmer (F3 Grade)	103 v Lower Eltham 118 v Epping 102* v Bundoora 107* v Riverside 100* v Lower Plenty 110 v Riverside
5 Wkts in an Innings	Luke Forbes (E Grade) Brett Oliver (F3 Grade)	5/68 v Mernda 5/41 v Heidelberg 5/31 v Laurimar 5/40 v Laurimar

The following teams taking out premierships in competitions contested by the Senior Club;

- o Rosebank (Barclay Shield)
- North Eltham (B Grade)
- o Lower Plenty (E Grade)
- Greensborough (F1 Grade)
- o Greensborough (F3 Grade)
- o Rosanna (Loans Sorted T20 Comp)
- To be Confirmed (Spirit of Cricket Award)
- Laurimar (Vets A)

Andrew Lamont (Eltham) on winning the **John Gleeson Medal** for the best player in the **DVCA Money Shield competition** with 17 votes. Brent O'Connor (10) and Julian Drohan (6) were the highest vote winners for Banyule.

Banyule Cricket Club also **welcomed** the following players to the senior club in **2024-25** for the first of what is hoped to be many successful and enjoyable years of association: - Stephanie Aston, Olivia Barylka, Omer Butt, Amaya Cadusch, Bethany Cadusch, Robert Deane, Max Gardner, Jaime Hare, Jack Harrington, Kieran Keating, Imogen Kingham, Kelly Kingham, Grace Lambert, Scarlett Lambert, Madeleine Lyngcoln, Edward Mott, Addison O'Connor, Caitlin Phipps, Olivia Pucella, Tilly Reid, Adele Ryan, Evelyn Thompson, Isla Thompson, Michelle Thompson, Neveah Walter, and Jake Weber-Byrne

Players Kieran Keating (#242), Jaxon McIntyre (#243), and Tarun Ohri (#244) on making their 1st XI debuts during the season.

Players Steve Pinner (300), Jeff Wilson (300), & Brett Oliver (200) on achieving significant milestone game achievements in senior cricket for Banyule CC during the season.

Players Paul Davis (700 Wickers and 6500 Runs), David Veal (9000 Runs), Geoff Place (300 Wickets) & Justin Poyser (5000 Runs) on achieving the significant senior cricket milestones during the season.

APPRECIATIONS

The Board of Management thanks the members and friends of the Club who gave special help during the season, including:

- o Parents and others who lent their assistance during the season as team managers, scorers, umpires and taxi drivers for the Club's junior teams.
- o All junior coaches who helped organise and develop our future champions.
- Damien Braniff as Team Manager and Scorer of the 1st XI.
- o Tim Braddy and James McIntyre as the Club's junior co-ordinators.
- o Steve Pinner as the Club's Woolworths Blast co-ordinator.
- o Tom Braddy (Head Coach), Darcy Pinner, Scarlett Lambert, and Isla Thompson for assisting in the running of the summer Woolworths Blast program.
- o Alistair Howell for his coaching and encouragement of junior players.
- Fraser Neilson for his work in having our facilities and playing areas marked and in excellent condition for match day.
- o Committee and various bar staff who provided refreshments and canteen facilities on game day.
- o Tom Braddy on his work with our club website and social media updates throughout the season.
- o Ralph Kernaghan for his photography work of the playing activities.
- The Committees of the DVCA, and the City of Banyule Parks and Gardens Department on a smooth year of administration.
- Kookaburra, Cutting Edge Cricket, All Things Safety Wear and 88.6FM for its generous support of the Diamond Valley Cricket Association.
- The Club's sponsors: Physio Life Australia, Foodworks East Ivanhoe, Brolec Electrical, Bonola Automotive, Barr'd Wine & Tapas, & Place Built.

OFF THE FIELD

Our congratulations go to current and recent players on:

- o Callum Asbury on representing the Australian Deaf Cricket Team
- o Michael Hannan & Jo on the birth of their son Charlie John
- o Sam Place & Jane on the birth of their third child Jack
- o Ryan Batchelder & Julia on their birth of their second child Annabelle
- Scott Clapton & Samantha on the birth of their second child Mia
- o Andrew Clapton & Lauren on the birth of their daughter Harper
- Michael Delaney & Lily on the birth of their second child James Patrick
- Justin Poyser & Bec on their engagement
- o Brent O'Connor on his selection in the Victorian over 40's national carnival held in Brisbane

THE CLUB CHAMPIONS

The best performed player in the senior club is awarded the club champion trophy.

The award is decided on a points formula for runs, assisted wickets, unassisted wickets, catches, stumping's, run outs (direct and assisted). Points are awarded in home and away fixtures only.

	CLUB CHAMPION TROPHY - 2024/25										
1	Waheed Kazi	144.75	8	Julian Drohan	103	15	Jeff Wilson	87.75			
2	Justin Poyser	138.25	9	Brett Oliver	102	16	Cam Ataryniw	86			
3	David Veal	137.50	10	Tom Braddy	94.75	17	Anish Jadhav	84.50			
4	Ollie McGillion	135.25	11=	Jake Lee	92.25	18	Jaxon McIntyre	81			
5	Brent O'Connor	130.5	11=	Jeremy Mahar	92.25	19	James McIntyre	80			
6	Steve Pinner	127.25	13	Ryan Forbes	91	20	Paul McMurray	76.25			
7	Daniel Murray	114.75	14	Daryl Kennedy	90.25	21	Ryder McMurray	75.25			

THE GRAEME RENSHAW MEDAL

Graeme made his 1st XI debut in 1963-64 when the club was known as Rosanna Presbyterians. A fantastic wicket keeper who was awarded the position in the Banyule team of the first 50 years and a very dependable batsman at either end of the order, Graeme has coached the club and also been President aside from many years on the club's committee. He was awarded life membership in the 1970's and is still an active player and hugely respected member of the Banyule Cricket Club. The **Graeme Renshaw medal** is awarded on a 3-2-1 basis across all grades.

The vote count was conducted on presentation evening. Although ahead for most of the evening, the winner Steve Pinner found himself under pressure from multiple fast finishing vote getters. Victory for Steve in an award that has traditionally favoured 'all-rounder types', saw him become the 19th winner of this trophy since its inception in 1997-98.

A special thank you to Paul Davis for collating the votes over the season and the visual presentation of them on the evening organised by Tom Braddy.

RESULT 2024-25

- 17 S Pinner
- 15 B O'Connor, J Poyser, D Veal
- 14 W Kazi
- 13 R Forbes, D Murray
- 11 P Cargin
- 10 T Braddy, J Mahar, P McMurray, J Wilson
- 9 J Drohan, T Kuriakose
- 8 S Adair, J Arandt, K Keating, Ary Mittal
- 7 P Davis, J Kapsalis, J Lee, O McGillion, A Ohri, B Oliver
- 6 B Davis
- 5 L Adair, A Gibson, A Jadhav, D Kennedy, H McMurray, G Melton, J Neilson, T Ohri, J Patena-McCarthy, J Samad
- 4 C Ataryniw, J Dhruve, M Hannan, James McIntyre, M Mckellar
- 3 C Braniff, S Dennis, T Elmer, M Harte, R Hartnett, L Hobson-Nicholls, R Jones, R McMurray, S Mittal, L O'Connor, L Ryan, G Singh
- 2 D Aston, J Bowler, E Conceicao, J Kennedy, J Marks, Ash Mittal
- 1 N Aston, O Butt, D Dennis, S Haila, Jax McIntyre, D Pinner, G Place, G Renshaw, H Stephens-Block

DVCA VETERANS REPORT

The following players (20) played Veterans cricket in 2024-25 – Darren Aston, Phil Barnes, Adrian Brown, Jacques Chaperon, Richie Crockford, Craig Davidson, Lloyd Devlin, Rod Ebbage, Ash Gibson, Michael Harte, Rob Jones, Pranaya Narula, Chandra Pingala, Marty Phillips, Geoff Place, Adnan Qamar, Sanjay Rawal, Jayesh Samant, John Vignale, and Hamish Wood.

Thank you to all participants for helping us field a full team every second Sunday.

This season we remained in A Grade and although we were not as strong as in previous years, we were always competitive despite losing every match.

A big thank you to our skipper Michael Harte, who led from the front in all aspects. He gave everyone a chance to display their skills and showed incredible patience.

New players to the club this season were Jacques Chaperon, Pranaya Narula, Adnan Qamar, Chandra Pingala, Jayesh Samant and Hamish Wood.

Hamish Wood had a stellar season, polling in the votes every game he played and was very deservedly our best and fairest winner voted by the captain of the opposing side at the end of the match. Congratulations Hamish.

Next season we are going to field two sides and I'm already looking forward to it. See you all at the first training session in early October.

Geoff 'Jed' Place Vets Co-ordinator

THE GEOFF PLACE MEDAL

Geoff made his senior debut in 1971-72. His has been an ongoing association both as a long term senior player (continuing) combined with many years as a senior committee member in multiple senior roles including Club president. He was awarded life membership in the early 1980's. At his initiative the club pursued the formation of a Veterans (Vets) side in the early 2010's just prior to joining the DVCA. This has grown over the years and in some years we have had as many as four sides playing.

In honour of his contribution and the respect in which he is held, the club decided to award a Best & Fairest medal across the Banyule Cricket Club Vets grades. The **Geoff Place medal** is awarded on a 3-2-1 basis across all grades (where multiple sides are entered).

The vote count was conducted at the conclusion of the home and away season. First year player and a junior parent, Hamish Wood was a stand-out winner with 11 votes from a possible 15 across the five games played.

RESULT 2024-25

11 - H Wood

4 – M Harte

3 - A Brown, R Ebbage, A Qamar

2 - P Barnes, A Gibson

1 - L Devlin, G Place

BANYULE 1ST XI (Money Shield) – Played 14, Won 5, Lost 5, Drawn 4 (5th)

- R1 Montmorency 4/130 drew Banyule 0/0
- R2 Eltham 6/302 defeated Banyule 114
- R3 Lalor 181 (J Mahar 4/38) defeated Banyule 178 (B O'Connor 76)
- R4 Banyule 8/127 lost to Rosebank 5/130
- R5 Banyule 8/192 (J Drohan 103) lost to Lower Eltham 3/193
- R6 Banyule 4/192 (C Braniff 94*, J Samad 50) defeated Plenty 9/179 (L Hobson-Nicholls 3/25. R Hartnett 4ct)
- R7 Banyule 233 (J Drohan 79) drew Bundoora Park 0/0
- R8 Greensborough 140 (J Mahar 4/38, R Hartnett 4ct) lost to Banyule 3/144 (J Lee 52*)
- R9 Lower Plenty 127 (B O'Connor 4/10) lost to Banyule 5/131
- R10 Lower Plenty 290 (M Hannan 3/67) drew Banyule 8/100
- R11 Rosebank 9/153 lost to Banyule 5/157
- R12 Montmorency 5/234 defeated Banyule 142 (K Keating 68)
- R13 Lower Eltham 212 (J Mahar 3/62) drew Banyule 3/97 (J Poyser 54*)
- **R14** Plenty 89 (B O'Connor 3/8) lost to Banyule 8/90

1 ST XI (2024/25)			E	BATTING						BOWL	ING		
NAME (18 Played)	МТ	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	ov	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ARANDT, Jack W	14	12	1	155	43	14.09	3	105	17	346	7	49.43	2/26
BOWLER, Jackson D	6	5	0	82	38	16.40	0	-					
BRANIFF, Connor W	11	10	1	224	94*	24.89	2/0	0.5	0	6	1	6.00	1/6
DROHAN, Julian J	12	11	3	256	103	32.00	6	58	13	183	8	22.88	2/6
HANNAN, Michael J	4	2	0	49	34	24.50	0	48.5	9	151	7	21.57	3/67
HARTNETT, Ryan J	6	3	1	42	27	21.00	15/1	-					
HOBSON-NICHOLLS, Leo R	12	7	5	19	17*	9.50	2	74	5	305	13	23.46	3/25
KEATING, Kieran C	12	8	1	173	68	24.71	5	13	0	80	2	40.00	1/19
LEE, Jake R	11	10	2	151	52*	18.88	9	-					
LENNOX-FRASER, Connor	1	-					0	-					
MAHAR, Jeremy C	14	5	3	21	16*	10.50	4	161.3	38	510	24	21.25	4/38
McINTYRE, Jaxon G	7	5	0	25	14	5.00	5	40.5	4	163	6	27.17	2/24
NEILSON, Joshua A	8	5	2	40	34*	13.33	3	64	15	201	3	67.00	1/18
O'CONNOR, Brent L	14	11	2	250	76	27.78	5	116	37	254	18	14.11	4/10
OHRI, Tarun	5	2	0	21	19	10.50	1	30	5	89	5	17.80	2/14
POYSER, Justin D	6	6	1	146	54*	29.20	5/1	-					
SAMAD, Jordan	10	9	0	91	50	10.11	5/0	-					
WILSON, Jeff, N	1	1	0	12	12	12.00	0	14	6	20	0	-	-

BANYULE 2nd XI (B Grade) - Played 14, Won 6, Lost 6, Drawn 2 (5th)

- R1 Rosanna 6/76 (C Ataryniw 3/9) drew Banyule 0/0
- R2 Montmorency 8/312 (R McMurray 4/58, D Murray 3/90) defeated Banyule 210
- R3 Heidelberg 8/178 defeated Banyule 166
- R4 Banyule 5/177 (J Poyser 54) lost to Diamond Creek 3/178 (E Conceicao 3/46)
- R5 Banyule 7/175 (W Kazi 78) defeated Riverside 140 (J Wilson 3/22, R Hartnett 2ct/2st)
- **R6** Plenty 143 (T Ohri 3/16) lost to Banyule 1/144 (W Kazi 66*)
- R7 Banyule 194 drew North Eltham 1/37
- R8 Mernda 212 (D Murray 6/68) lost to Banyule 5/214 (J Poyser 57, R McMurray 55*, L Adair 51*)
- R9 Banyule 3/231 (J Poyser 118) defeated Epping 132
- **R10** Epping 76 (D Murray 3/12, T Ohri 3/22) & 126 (C Ataryniw 4/24) lost to Banyule 9/129(d) & 0/76
- R11 Diamond Creek 110 defeated Banyule 82
- R12 Rosanna 254 (A Jadhav 4/61, J Marks 4ct) defeated Banyule 159
- R13 Riverside 150 (A Jadhav 4/49) lost to Banyule 6/152
- R14 Plenty 7/164 defeated Banyule 106

2 nd XI (2024/25)				BATTING						BOWL	ING		
NAME (26 Played)	МТ	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	ov	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ADAIR, Liam J	12	11	2	183	51*	20.33	7	1	0	4	0	-	-
ATARYNIW, Cameron M	13	8	1	60	24	8.57	4	92.3	12	320	18	17.78	4/24
BOWLER, Jackson D	7	7	1	123	26	20.50	1	-					
BRADDY, Tom J	2	2	0	5	5	2.50	1	8	4	9	2	4.50	2/9
CONCEICAO, Ellio T	10	6	1	38	23	7.60	4	74.5	13	241	7	34.43	3/46
FORBES, Ryan C	4	4	1	8	4*	2.67	0	31.5	0	85	3	28.33	2/48
HANNAN, Michael J	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	0	6	1	13	0	-	-
HARTNETT, Ryan J	3	3	1	15	13	7.50	4/2	-					
HOBSON-NICHOLLS, Leo R	1	-					0	-					
JADHAV, Anish V	6	5	0	90	45	18.00	2	67.2	14	192	12	16.00	4/49
KAZI, Waheed	12	13	2	391	78	35.55	7/2	22	8	60	2	30.00	2/60
KENNEDY, Daryl A	1	1	0	8	8	8.00	1	-					
LEE, Jake R	3	3	1	126	48	63.00	1	-					
MARKS, Jamie A	6	4	2	15	9*	7.50	10/1	-					
McINTYRE, James G	5	4	2	44	25	22.00	1	-					
McINTYRE, Jaxon G	6	5	1	75	36	18.75	1	28.4	1	126	7	18.00	2/18
McMURRAY, Paul L	4	2	0	66	36	33.00	2	14	3	36	0	ı	-
McMURRAY, Ryder J	10	7	1	93	55*	15.50	6	64.3	11	218	12	18.17	4/58
MURRAY, Daniel R	11	6	1	56	32	11.20	1	122.2	10	441	23	19.17	6/68
NEILSON, Joshua A	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	2	7	3	14	2	7.00	2/14
O'CONNOR, Liam M	6	4	0	38	15	9.50	0/0	-					
OHRI, Tarun	4	2	1	13	13	13.00	0	33	4	94	10	9.40	3/16
PATENA-McCARTHY, Jack	6	2	1	6	3*	6.00	4	38	4	162	5	32.40	2/22
POYSER, Justin D	7	6	0	327	118	54.50	4/0	-					
SAMAD, Jordan	3	3	1	98	45	49.00	1	-					
WILSON, Jeff N	10	7	2	135	48	27.00	8	73.3	14	202	10	20.20	3/22

BANYULE 3rd XI (E Grade) – Played 16, Won 10, Lost 5, Drawn 1 (2nd)

- **R1** Riverside 6/76 drew Banyule 0/0
- R2 Heidelberg 9/218 (R Forbes 5/41) defeated Banyule 159 (T Braddy 59)
- R3 Banyule 8/154 lost to Thomastown 5/158 (J Kennedy 3/25)
- R4 Banyule 2/187 (W Kazi 84*) lost to Thomastown Utd 7/189
- R5 Panton Hill 4/179 lost to Banyule 7/180 (J McIntyre Snr 54)
- R6 Bundoora 179 (A Jadhav 4/42) lost to Banyule 2/180 (D Kennedy 102*, J McIntyre Snr 54*)
- R7 Greensborough 133 (D Murray 4/50) lost to Banyule 5/134 (O McGillion 55)
- **R8** Banyule 9/233 (S Adair 82) defeated Mernda 101 (Aryan Mittal 3/11, O McGillion 3/19, T Kuriakose 3/21, D Veal 4ct)
- R9 -Lower Plenty 2/219 defeated Banyule 154
- R10 Banyule 161 (O McGillion 54, G Singh 52) defeated Lower Plenty 83 (R Forbes 3/27)
- R11 Thomastown Utd 93 (P Davis 4/20, P Cargin 3/17) lost to Banyule 5/94
- **R12** Banyule 9/297 (L O'Connor 107*) defeated Riverside 229 (Aryan Mittal 3/11, P McMurray 3/47)
- R13 Panton Hill 6/164 lost to Banyule 5/166
- R14 Bundoora 7/118 (R Forbes 3/15) lost to Banyule 2/121 (S Adair 55*)
- SF Panton Hill 175 (P Davis 3/20, P Cargin 3/55) lost to Banyule 9/177 (S Adair 52)
- GF Lower Plenty 8/198 defeated Banyule 149

3 rd XI (2024-25)			BAT	TING						BOWL	ING		
NAME (31 Played)	MT	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	ov	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ADAIR, Simon G	12	11	2	269	83	29.89	3	-					
BRADDY, Tom J	14	14	1	264	59	20.31	4	6.4	0	40	3	11.33	2/13
CARGIN, Peter J	14	8	1	66	36	9.43	5	136.2	22	409	18	22.72	3/17
CONCEICAO, Ellio T	2	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	16	3	67	3	22.33	2/16
DAVIS, Paul A	11	8	2	146	43	24.33	1	79	11	242	13	18.62	4/20
DENNIS, Samuel I	1	1	1	0	0*	-	1/0	-					
DHRUVE, Jahan M	1	1	1	13	13	-	0/0	-					
FORBES, Ryan C	12	5	2	13	7	4.33	6	113.5	26	304	21	14.48	5/41
GIBSON, Ashley	5	4	0	26	13	6.50	0	9	0	35	1	35.00	1/24
HARRINGTON, Jack	2	1	0	4	4	4.00	1	2	0	8	0	-	-
JADHAV, Anish V	1	-					0	7	0	42	4	10.50	4/42
KAPSALIS, Joshua K	3	2	2	7	4*	-	0	12.4	6	15	2	7.50	2/13
KAZI, Waheed	2	1	1	84	84*	-	0	1	0	6	0	-	-
KENNEDY, Daryl A	12	11	2	300	104*	33.33	8	6.5	2	33	1	33.00	1/24
KENNEDY, Jake W	9	5	2	28	14	9.33	0	47	8	159	5	31.80	3/25
KURIAKOSE, Thomas J	9	9	0	128	46	14.22	1	17.1	5	34	4	8.50	3/21
MARKS, Jamie A	4	2	1	11	8	11.00	4/1	-					
McGILLION, Oliver A	16	12	1	338	55	30.73	10	161	54	424	15	28.27	3/19
McINTYRE, James G	10	9	1	187	54*	23.38	6	71.1	18	152	6	25.33	2/11
McMURRAY, Paul L	5	4	2	90	30	45.00	1	51.4	16	123	6	20.50	3/47
MELTON, Garrick F	1	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	-					
MITTAL, Aryan	3	3	0	38	37	12.33	0	25.5	8	41	7	5.86	3/11
MURRAY, Daniel R	3	2	2	15	12*	-	1	29	4	120	6	20.00	4/50
O'CONNOR, Declan A	5	3	0	27	20	9.00	0	22	2	76	1	76.00	1/31
O'CONNOR, Liam M	8	6	1	164	107*	32.80	3/0	-					
PATENA-McCARTHY, Jack	1	1	1	6	6*	-	1	-					
PINNER, Darcy P	1	-					0	-					
PINNER, Steve M	2	1	0	24	24	24.00	0	-					
SINGH, Gurpal	3	3	1	72	52	36.00	0	13	2	38	0	-	-
STEPHENS-BLOCK, HW	2	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	8	0	34	0	-	-
VEAL, David R	2	1	1	3	3*	-	4/0	-					

BANYULE 4th XI (F1 Grade) - Played 12, Won 2, Lost 9, Drawn 1 (8th)

- R1 Banyule 6/199 (Aryan Mittal 60, S Pinner 54) lost to Rivergum 4/201 (M Mckellar 3/35)
- R2 Bundoora Utd 9/145 (G Place 3/9) lost to Banyule 3/147 (S Pinner 90*)
- R3 Research 5/201 defeated Banyule 6/194 (S Pinner 92)
- R4 Banyule 8/158 (S Pinner 70) lost to Macleod 2/160
- R5 Banyule 6/137 lost to Greensborough 3/138
- R6 Laurimar 9/338 (D O'Connor 3/47) drew Banyule 0/0
- R7 Banyule 6/209 lost to Plenty 5/215
- R8 Banyule 9/134 lost to Rivergum 4/138
- R9 Banyule 5/126 lost to Bundoora Utd 4/128
- R10 Banyule 246 (J Dhruve 59, J Patena-McCarthy 59, S Pinner 56) def Research 147 (J Dhruve 4/19)
- R11 Banyule 225 lost to Macleod 7/226 (J Kapsalis 4/61)
- R12 Greensborough 7/180 defeated Banyule 8/136 (A Gibson 53)

4 th XI (2024/25)			Е	BATTING						BOW	LING		
NAME (39 Played)	МТ	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	ov	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ADAIR, Liam J	1	1	0	14	14	14.00	1	5	0	14	1	14.00	1/14
ADAIR, Simon G	3	2	1	42	42*	42.00	0	5	0	51	0	-	-
ASTON, Darren B	1	1	0	34	34	34.00	0	-					
ASTON, Nicholas J	2	2	0	26	18	13.00	0	15.2	1	48	1	48.00	1/15
BOWLER, Nicholas J	2	1	1	6	6*	-	1	16.5	6	59	2	29.50	1/29
BUTT, Omer	1	-					0	2	0	9	0	-	-
DAVIS, Brennan Z	4	-					0	32	4	116	2	58.00	1/13
DENNIS, David J	5	2	2	2	2*	-	0	21	0	128	3	42.67	1/10
DENNIS, Samuel I	3	3	1	59	35	29.50	0/0	-					
DHRUVE, Jahan M	6	5	0	86	59	17.20	3/0	33.1	9	99	7	14.14	4/19
DHRUVE, Milan	1	-					1	-					
DONEHUE, Patrick J	2	-					0	7	2	35	1	35.00	1/26
GARDNER, Max	3	2	1	9	8	9.00	1	18	0	92	2	46.00	2/33
GIBSON, Ashley	7	6	0	154	53	25.67	4/0	33	1	141	5	28.20	2/26
HARRINGTON, Jack	6	5	1	45	22	11.25	3	24	0	114	4	28.50	2/36
HARTE, Michael F	1	1	1	48	48*	-	0	8	1	29	0	-	-
JONES, Robert J	1	-					2/0	-					
KAPSALIS, Joshua K	3	3	1	29	16	14.50	1	28.3	8	98	7	14.00	4/61
KENNEDY, Daryl A	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	1	-					
KENNEDY, Jake W	3	2	0	8	4	4.00	2	25	3	77	2	38.50	1/28
KURIAKOSE, Thomas J	1	1	0	6	6	6.00	0	6	1	9	1	9.00	1/9
MARKS, Jamie A	2	2	1	39	36	39.00	1/0	-					
McKELLAR, Mitchell	5	5	0	61	26	12.20	0	22	0	118	4	29.50	3/35
McKELLAR, Peter	6	4	1	20	12	6.67	2	11.2	0	74	1	74.00	1/20
McMURRAY, Hayden D	2	1	0	3	3	3.00	0	7	0	24	0	-	-
McMURRAY, Paul L	2	2	1	80	46*	80.00	3	19	5	42	3	14.00	2/30
MELTON, Garrick F	7	5	0	74	44	14.80	1	1	0	14	0	-	-
MITTAL, Aryan	3	3	0	78	60	26.00	0	18	3	56	2	28.00	2/16
MITTAL, Sahil	1	1	1	1	1*	-	0	3	0	19	0	-	-
MOTT, Edward	1	-					0	1	0	5	1	5.00	1/5
O'CONNOR, Declan A	8	7	0	75	28	10.71	2	35	2	179	6	29.83	3/47
OLIVER, Brett A	2	2	1	71	48	71.00	0	6	1	16	1	16.00	1/16
PATENA-McCARTHY, JA	3	3	0	106	59	35.33	0	-					
PINNER, Darcy P	8	7	1	66	37	11.00	3	41	0	233	5	46.60	1/18
PINNER, Steve M	9	8	1	453	92	64.71	4	1	0	11	0	-	-
PLACE, Geoff R	12	6	3	49	28	16.33	2	36	0	151	6	25.17	3/9
RYAN, Luke A	1	1	0	6	6	6.00	1/0	-					
STEPHENS-BLOCK, HW	2	-					0	13	0	82	1	82.00	1/38
WEBER-BYRNE, Jake	1	1	0	1	1	1.00	1/1						

BANYULE 5th XI (F3 Grade) – Played 12, Won 4, Lost 8, Drawn 0 (6th)

- R1 Lower Plenty 8/151 lost to Banyule 3/162 (G Melton 100*)
- R2 Bundoora Park 57 (H McMurray 4/16, A Ohri 3/11, R Jones 4ct) lost to Banyule 3/58
- R3 South Morang 4/198 defeated Banyule 9/96
- **R4** Riverside 3/224 lost to Banyule 3/227 (T Elmer 110, D Veal 75*)
- **R5** Greensborough 4/204 defeated Banyule 4/189 (G Melton 56, T Kuriakose 50*)
- R6 Banyule 207 defeated Laurimar 91 (B Oliver 5/31, D Veal 5/40)
- R7 Hurstbridge 232 (H McMurray 3/31) defeated Banyule 131
- R8 Banyule 164 lost to Lower Plenty 5/165
- R9 Bundoora Park 4/195 defeated Banyule 4/185 (D Veal 71*)
- **R10** Banyule 9/125 lost to South Morang 9/131 (B Oliver 4/28)
- R11 Banyule 8/216 (D Veal 61, S Dennis 50) lost to Riverside 5/221
- R12 Greensborough 8/137 defeated Banyule 5/135

5 th XI (2024/25)				BATTING	}					BOV	VLING		
NAME (32 Played)	МТ	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	٥٧	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ASTON, Darren B	2	1	0	4	4	4.00	1	-					
ASTON, Nicholas P	1	1	0	22	22	22.00	0	11	2	45	2	22.50	2/45
BUTT, Omer	2	2	2	34	29*	-	1	12	1	51	1	51.00	1/26
CAMERON, Brody R	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	1	0	3	0	-	-
CROCKFORD, Richard	1	1	0	7	7	7.00	1	-					
DAVIS, Brennan Z	3	2	0	0	0	0.00	0	32	9	76	4	19.00	3/21
DEANE, Robert	6	3	0	2	1	0.67	0	21.5	2	103	3	34.33	2/31
DENNIS, David J	7	5	0	68	41	13.60	1	25	0	147	3	49.00	1/25
DENNIS, Samuel I	6	5	0	96	50	19.20	3/0	-					
DONEHUE, Patrick J	5	3	0	21	17	7.00	0	21	4	89	1	89.00	1/23
ELMER, Thomas D	1	1	0	110	110	110.00	0	7	0	42	0	-	-
HAILA, Shadi	6	4	0	52	27	13.00	4	13	5	30	3	10.00	2/12
HOWELL, Alistair D	10	3	3	15	13*	-	3	24	3	83	1	83.00	1/15
JONES, Robert J	3	3	0	57	40	19.00	4/0	-					
KURIAKOSE, Thomas J	2	2	2	55	50*	•	0	12	4	48	0	-	-
McKELLAR, Mitchell C	2	2	0	34	32	17.00	1	19	5	49	3	16.33	2/30
McKELLAR, Peter	1	1	0	0	0	0.00	1	-					
McMURRAY, Hayden D	6	6	1	67	23*	13.40	4	32	6	132	9	14.67	4/16
MELTON, Garrick F	3	3	1	160	100*	80.00	3	6	0	25	1	25.00	1/25
MITTAL, Ashish	10	10	1	121	39*	13.44	1	5.5	0	34	0	-	-
MITTAL, Aryan	1	1	0	13	13	13.00	0	7	2	22	2	11.00	2/22
MITTAL, Sahil	4	4	0	44	21	11.00	1	18.2	4	61	3	20.33	2/29
MOREL, Grayson S	2	-					0	4.1	2	16	0	-	-
OHRI, Ayaan	7	6	2	95	44	23.75	4	44	9	148	7	21.14	3/11
OLIVER, Brett A	8	5	4	93	39*	93.00	5	77.1	22	178	12	14.83	5/31
OLIVER, Rory X	3	2	1	3	3	3.00	3/1	-					
RENSHAW, Graeme D	9	5	3	16	10*	8.00	3/0	13	3	60	1	60.00	1/20
RYAN, Luke A	5	4	0	74	39	18.50	4	23	1	105	1	105.00	1/35
SINGH, Gurpal	1	1	0	4	4	4.00	0	12	6	25	0	-	-
STEPHENS-BLOCK, HW	5	3	0	18	9	6.00	1	35	3	118	5	23.60	2/20
VEAL, David R	8	8	2	335	75*	55.83	2	58	4	208	12	17.33	5/40
WEBER-BYRNE, Jake	1	1	0	27	27	27.00	0	-					

BANYULE WOMENS Spring Competition NMCA Division 3 (Heather Baillee Shield) – Played 8, Won 6, Lost 1, Drawn 1 (Premiers)

R1 – Bye

R2 – Banyule 7/83 defeated Haig Fawkner-East Coburg 8/64 (S Aston 2/9)

R3 – Banyule 3/72 lost to Heidelberg 2/73

R4 – Baseballers & Cobras 3/86 lost Banyule 1/88 (J Hare 39)

R5 – Camrea Stingrays 2/100 lost to Banyule 3/101 (T Reid 36*, A Ryan 20*)

R6 – Banyule 2/89 (G Lambert 35*) defeated South Morang 7/68 (S Lambert 2/3)

R7 – North Eltham 0/0 drew Banyule 0/0

SF – Camrea Stingrays 7/95 (B Cadusch 3/13) lost to Banyule 4/96 (T Reid 36*)

GF – Banyule 2/115 (G Lambert 35*, I Thompson 30, T Reid 22) defeated Heidelberg 9/84 (G Lambert 2/7, I Thompson 2/15)

BANYULE WOMENS Summer Competition NMCA Division 2 (Lenore Smith Shield) – Played 6, Won 0, Lost 5, Drawn 1 (9th)

R1 – North Eltham 9/117 (M Lyngcoln 2/15, S Lambert 2/18) drew Banyule 5/27

R2 – Research 2/166 defeated Banyule 6/13

R3 – Banyule 4/89 lost to Greensborough 2/91

R4 – Banyule 124 (I Thompson 22, M Lyngcoln 20) lost to Northern Socials 4/126

R5 – Banyule 9/112 (M Lyngcoln 30) lost to Pascoe Vale 4/113

R6 – Banyule 67 lost to Riverside 4/68

Spring/Summer (2024/25)			E	BATTING						BOW	LING		
NAME (19 Played)	МТ	INN	NO	RUNS	HS	AVE	СТ	οv	MD	RUNS	WK	AVE	ВВ
ASTON, Stephanie	8	6	3	36	13*	12.00	3/0	14	0	78	5	15.60	2/8
BARYLKA, Olivia	12	10	2	56	14	8.00	0	22.4	0	95	5	19.00	1/5
CADUSCH, Amaya	2	1	1	12	12*	-	0	2	0	10	0	-	-
CADUSCH, Bethany	13	9	2	48	13	6.86	2	36	3	166	7	23.71	3/13
HARE, Jaime	14	12	2	83	39	8.30	6/0	17	0	107	2	53.50	1/2
KINGHAM, Imogen	3	2	1	18	11	18.00	1	4	0	17	0	-	
KINGHAM, Kelly	2	2	1	1	1	1.00	0	-					
LAMBERT, Grace	9	5	5	72	36*	•	1	19	2	71	4	17.75	2/7
LAMBERT, Scarlett	14	6	0	30	10	5.00	1	28.3	3	134	8	16.75	2/3
LYNGCOLN, Madeleine	13	12	4	139	30	17.38	2	35	4	141	8	17.63	2/15
O'CONNOR, Addison	2	1	1	19	19*	•	0	2	0	6	1	6.00	1/6
PHIPPS, Caitlin	4	1	0	0	0	0.00	0	4	0	13	0	•	-
PUCELLA, Olivia	12	6	1	17	5*	3.40	2	22.1	0	88	4	22.00	1/2
REID, Tilly	5	3	3	94	36*	•	2	8	0	34	0	•	-
RYAN, Adele	2	2	1	31	20*	31.00	0	1	0	9	0	-	-
THOMSON, Evelyn	4	1	1	4	4*	-	0	7	1	27	1	27.00	1/16
THOMSON, Isla	14	11	2	149	30	16.56	2	31.1	2	121	6	20.17	2/15
THOMSON, Michelle	10	3	2	10	8	10.00	2	2	0	20	0	-	-
WALTER, Neveah	4	4	0	8	7	2.00	0	13	0	46	1	46.00	1/17

2024/25 Banyule Women's Report

This season marked our first ever with a women's team. We started with a brand-new team of women, many of whom had never played together before. This included five women who were completely new to cricket: Jaime Hare, Olivia Barylka, Michelle Thomson, Caitlin Phipps, and Olivia Pucella. It was incredibly brave of them to step outside their comfort zones and try something entirely new.

As the season progressed, our team faced significant adversity, with our biggest challenge being a shortage of players. We often played with as few as 7 players on the field, requiring us to find fill-ins each week and frequently asking junior girls and their parents to play.

Despite these challenges, we were able to push through and win 5 out of 6 of our home and away games. This success propelled us into the finals campaign, where we won our first match against Camrea, scoring 4/96 to Camrea's 7/95. Notable performances included Bethany Cadusch taking 3 wickets for 13 runs and Tilly Reid retiring not out with 36 runs off 31 balls.

In our very first season, we reached the grand final against Heidelberg CC. Batting first, we scored a total of 115 runs, with Grace Lambert retiring not out on 36 runs off 40 balls and Isla Thomson contributing 30 runs off 49 balls. In the second innings, Heidelberg fought back strongly but ultimately fell short, thanks to excellent bowling from Grace Lambert (2/7) and Isla Thomson (2/15).

I am so incredibly proud of how hard these girls worked to accomplish such a marvellous achievement with so little prior experience. Their success truly comes down to the hard work each of these girls put in to get where they are.

The second half of the summer saw us move up a division, presenting a real challenge for the girls as they faced women with significantly more experience and established team cohesion. The team went winless during this part of the summer, however, this doesn't fully represent the achievements we had within it.

We celebrated our first-ever mother-daughter batting partnership with Kelly and Imogen Kingham, and we saw continuous growth and milestones across the board, with many women achieving personal bests, such as Olivia Barylka making her highest score.

Overall, the summer was very successful for the club and its players. Winning the Grand Final after starting as a brand-new team and overcoming player shortages is a testament to their resilience, teamwork, and the dedication of each player.

The second half of the season, while challenging, clearly fostered individual growth and created special moments for the team. Thank you to the club, scorers, fill-ins and everyone involved in the Banyule Women's cricket program! The future looks bright for 2025/26.

Scarlett Lambert

Banyule Women's Captain

JUNIOR SECTION (SUMMARY & AWARDS)

JUNIOR REPORT

This season, the junior program at Banyule Cricket Club continued to thrive, cementing its reputation as the premier junior club in the DVCA. With strong numbers across all age groups, we're proud to offer opportunities for players of all abilities to develop their skills and build lasting friendships. None of this would be possible without our incredible team of volunteers—thank you for your tireless efforts.

A big thank you to our Junior Committee for their ongoing work behind the scenes. James McIntyre led the way with registrations and award coordination, while also supporting junior progression into senior ranks. Steve Pinner once again drove the Cricket Blast program and oversaw our U16 teams, with a strong focus on representative pathways. Brent O'Connor, in his senior coach role, offered expert coaching across age groups and led the U14s. The U12s were guided by Justin Cheesewright, Tarun Ohri, and Stuart Adderley, and the U10s continued under the steady hand of Pete McKellar.

We also appreciate the support from our main committee, especially President Brad Bowler and Secretary Geoff Place. Special thanks to Sally Cordina for stepping into the role of Child Safety Officer and bringing her valuable expertise to the position.

Our coaches and team managers are the heart of our club. Their professionalism and care for our young Bears are deeply appreciated. It was fantastic to see more senior players helping at training and bridging the gap between juniors and seniors. Thanks to Jackson Bowler and Jaxon McIntyre (U16 Blue), Jeremy Mahar (U16 White), and Tom Braddy (Cricket Blast) for their efforts. A special shoutout to junior Angus Cuthbertson, coached by his father Leigh, for leading our L2 Girls team—a huge commitment for a U14 player. The interest already shown by senior players for next season is very promising.

DVCA Junior Presentation Award Winners:

- U14 Blue Batting: Samuel Jackson 156 runs @ 78.00
- U15 Girls L2 Bowling: Imogen Kingham 10 wickets @ 11.60

Finals season brought excitement and reward. While on-field results are not our main focus, they reflect the growth and enjoyment of our players. Of our 12 competitive teams, five made finals, with one runner-up and two crowned premiers. Congratulations to all, especially:

U16 Blue

BCC 171 (L Adair 63, E Conceicao 33, J Dhruve 26) defeated Riverside CC 7/167 (R McMurray 4/42) Coach: Steve Pinner | TM: Amy McKellar

Girls L2

Laurimar CC 7/110 (V Gardner 3/3, A Ryan 2/7) defeated by BCC (V Gardner 39*) Coach: Grace Lambert | TM: Kelly Kingham

Tim Braddy

Junior Coordinator

Selected Age Group Reports:

U16 Blue Premiers

In a season that can be described as somewhat of a rollercoaster, it's fantastic to report that our U16 Blue (Pinner) team finished on a high with an unforgettable Grand Final win over Riverside.

It was a wonderful way for our top age boys (Ellio Conceicao - Captain, Xavier Baldwin - Vice Captain, Ryder McMurray, Jake Kennedy, Sam Dennis, Jack Patena-McCarthy and Michael Harper) to finish off their U16 cricket careers. It also continued the amazing run of premiership success for our bottom age boys (Jahan Dhruve, Mitch Mckellar, Darcy Pinner- all 4 flags in a row and Liam Adair - 3 flags in 4 seasons).

To say that our summer was inconsistent is an understatement. After starting off the season in great form with two strong wins and a tie against a super talented Laurimar team, we suddenly lost our way and suffered a number of large defeats. With finals approaching the team was provided with a simple challenge, focus on playing selfless team cricket and supporting each other no matter what the situation was in a game.

While the final round saw a loss to Jacko and Jax's team that relegated us to 4th, there was a noticeable change in how the boys supported each other and reacted to the result. The 4th place finish meant we had to travel to Epping to play the top ranked side, who had absolutely belted us earlier in the season. With nothing to lose the team finally did what they had teased at all summer... a complete team performance.

Semi Final - Banyule 3/134 (L. Adair 50*, J Patena-McCarthy 28, R McMurray 23*) Def Epping 7/111 (E Conceicao 2/11).

The Grand Final was nothing short of epic.

After winning the toss and batting we soon found ourselves in a big, big hole at 5/32. The opposition were up and about and we were stunned. In a famous fightback, Liam Adair and Ellio Conceicao (33 off 33) combined for a 50 run stand before Liam and Jahan Dhruve (26 off 34) added 66 to drag us towards a competitive total. Liam's innings of 63 off 103 was not the typically elegant knock that you'd expect to see from Liam but it was as courageous and determined as any. A nice cameo from Sam Dennis gave us another crucial 11 runs with our innings closing on 171.

The following Friday night started just as the first week had, with the opposition off to a flyer. Nothing was going right for the Bears with half chances falling short, numerous plays and misses and a brilliant run out given not out. After 20 overs the opposition score was 1/97 with only 75 runs to chase off the final 120 balls. Just as they did 7 days earlier, the team dragged themselves back off the canvas and into the game. The first few overs after the break from Ryder McMurray and Jahan Dhruve sent a clear message to the opposition that the game was not over.

When Ryder claimed the vital wicket of the opposition's best bat and then followed up the next ball by sending the new bat's hobs flying, the Bears were back! Another huge wicket thanks to a great diving catch by Liam and then a superb high catch from Darcy Pinner on the fence pushed momentum firmly into Banyule's direction.

The final few overs saw the equation come down to a run a ball with Jake Kennedy, Jahan and Ryder all bowling brilliant overs. When the final ball of the innings found its way into the safe gloves of Sammy Dennis, a famous victory was ours.

Banyule home by 4 runs and U16 Blue Premiers for 2024/25!

Banyule 9/171 (L.Adair 63, E.Conceicao 33, J.Dhruve 26) defeated Riverside 7/167 (R.McMurray 4/42)

An amazing game that wrapped up an amazing season! A massive thanks to Dave Dennis, Daryl Kennedy, Pat Baldwin, Paul McMurray and all families for their support over the summer. It's one we'll never forget!

Go Bears!

Steve Pinner U16 Coach

Banyule/Macleod L2 Girls - Premiers

The Banyule and Macleod combined team had a spectacular season in the DVCA L2 Girls division. After being thrown together a couple of weeks before the season started, the girls got to know each other throughout the season, developing their cricket, making new friends, and building a united team.

The season had its ups and downs, including starting games with only six players and chasing down 140+ runs to win against the top team. Each member of the team showed massive improvements in not only their cricket skills but also confidence as the season progressed, and I couldn't be prouder of them.

From an individual perspective, we saw some fantastic efforts from many players. With Viv taking out the bowling award with 13 wickets, Adele winning the batting award with 280 runs, Raha earning the fielding award with some fantastic efforts in the field, and Neveah being awarded the Coaches Award for her overall performance and improvement across the season. Imogen took out the bowling award for the entire DVCA L2 division, which is a well-deserved recognition of her efforts this season.

Thank you to all the players, parents and volunteers who made the season possible and so special for the girls. Your time and effort is greatly appreciated.

After finishing second on the ladder and dominating their semi-final, the Level 2 Girls were set the task of facing Laurimar/Thomastown United in the Grand Final. With the nature of the girls' competition and the rep summer, there were some friendly rivalries between the two teams and the stage was set.

Laurimar/Thomastown United came out firing, piling on a total of 110 runs for our girls to chase. During our fielding innings, there were some crucial individual efforts from Viv and Adele, taking 3 and 2 wickets respectively, and two massive run outs from Raha and Neveah. With the task set, we started our batting innings with a strong opening partnership from Neveah and Raha, each completing their task of retiring whilst chipping away at the total.

Adele and Viv then came in and put the pressure on the opposition, with Viv putting on an absolute masterclass of 39 runs of 20 balls with 4 fours to her name. For the rest of the innings, our girls weren't just battling the opposition but also the weather, with all the spectators begging for the rain to stay away.

However, in the penultimate over, our post-retirement opening batters returned to the crease, held their nerve and hit the winning runs, just before the rain really hit. Overall, it was an incredible game and a massive effort from all the girls who should be incredibly proud of themselves.

Scarlett Lambert **Team Captain**

	Coach	Team Manager	Results
U17 DVCA Girls L3	Aaron Lambert	Lisa Thomson	P14, W5, L7, D2 – 3 rd
U16 Blue	Steve Pinner	Amy Mckellar	P13, W7, L4, D1, T1 - 1st
U16 Teal/Blue	Jackson Bowler/Jackson McIntyre	Thea & Brett Oliver	P11, W5, L5, D1 – 5 th
U16 White	Jeremy Mahar	Chris Ray	P9, W2, L6, D1 – 6 th
U15 DVCA Girls L2	Grace Lambert	Kelly Kingham	P18, W11, L5, D2 – 1 st
U14 Blue	Nick Jackson	Justin Woo	P12, W6, L5, D1 – 3 rd
U14 Blue	Lloyd Devlin	Dan Kingham	P10, W3, L7 – 5 th
U14 Red	Leigh Cuthbertson	Amit Bumb	P10, W3, L6, D1 – 8 th
U14 Red	Terry McCarthy	Rachel Lambert	P11, W4, L6, D1 – 9 th
U13 DVCA Girls L1	Angus Cuthbertson	Andrea Maltman	P14, W1, L10, D3
U12 Teal	Justin Cheesewright	Ben Reardon	P16, W9, L5, D2 – 3 rd
U12 Teal	Tarun Ohri	Ferne Morton	P15, W6, L7, D2 – 7 th
U12 White	Stuart Adderley	Simon Branagan	P14, W4, L8, D2 – 7 th
U10 Red	Peter Mckellar/Jake Weber-Byrne	Amy Mckellar	P16
U10 Yellow	Nick Di Benedetto/Nitin Dewar	Brad Cocks	P15

	Batting	Bowling	Fielding Award	Coach Award	
U17 DVCA Girls L3	Evelyn Thomson	Scarlett Lambert	Isla Thomson	Madeleine Lyngcoln	
U16 Blue	Liam Adair	Jack Patena-McCarthy	Michael Harper & Jack Patena-McCarthy	Ellio Conceicao	
U16 Teal/Blue	Aryan Mittal	Max Gardner	Rory Oliver	Alexander Lyngcoln	
U16 White	Max Shewan	Nathan Clough	Zach Davis	Lucas Grimshaw	
U15 DVCA Girls L2	Adele Ryan	Vivienne Gardner	Raha Sharif	Neveah Walter	
U14 Blue	Samuel Jackson	Harry O'Connor	Joshua Cadusch (All Rounder)	Ryleigh Schaerer (Future Star)	
U14 Blue	Joel Koolstra	George Mercer	Cory Devlin	Darcy Kingham	
U14 Red	Liam Thomson	Angus Cuthbertson	Reuben Mathew	Alaan Qamar	
U14 Red	Aaron Williamson	Noah Williamson	Benjamin Short	Archie Wake	
				Future Star Award	
U12 Teal	Asher Shepherd	Vihaan Dhruve	Lachlan Cheesewright	Archie Downes	
U12 Teal	Vedith Swami	Cameron Cullen	Riley Cadusch	Angad Ohri	
U12 White	William Branagan	Sam Ballantyne	Ryan Adderley	Zachary Cordina	
U13 DVCA Girls L1	B DVCA Girls L1 All players receive participation medals				
U10 Red	All players receive participation medals				
U10 Yellow (M)	M) All players receive participation medals				
DVCA Award Winners	U14 Blue Batting – Sa U15 Girls L2 Batting				
Junior Representative Cricket U17 DVCA (VMCU) Mel Jones Shield – Bethany Cadusch, Elise Devlin, Scarlett Lambert, Isla Thomson, & Evelyn Thomson U16 Dowling Shield (VCA) – Ryder McMurray (Fitzroy-Doncaster) U16 DVCA (VMCU) Keith Mackay Shield – Alexander Lyngcoln U15 JG Craig Shield (VSDCA) – Liam Adair (Ivanhoe), Jahan Dhruve (Ivanhoe), Darce Pinner (Plenty Valley), & Mitchell Mckellar (Coburg) U15 Marg Jennings Shield (VSDCA) – Addison O'Connor & Tilly Reid (Plenty Valley) U14 DVCA (VMCU) Julie Savage Shield – Harshini Kovvuri, Madeleine Lyngcoln, Chiara Melideo, & Neveah Walter U12 DVCA (VMCU) Keith Mitchell Shield – Harrison O'Connor, & Ryleigh Schaerer U12 DVCA (VMCU) Josh Browne Shield – Angad Ohri U12 DVCA (VMCU) Claudia Fatone Shield – Imogen Kingham					

IN2CRICKET / WOOLWORTHS CRICKET BLAST PROGRAM

Our entry level Cricket Blast program returned for another season with almost 30 of our youngest 'Bear Cubs' taking part in 10 weeks of fun and games. Tom Braddy took over the Head Coaching duties for this season and was ably assisted by a team of junior coaches; Isla Thompson, Scarlett Lambert, Darcy Pinner and Jack Patena-McCarthy.

As in previous years our Blasters loved being led through mini games and skill activities by our young coaching group every Saturday morning for the 10 week season. It was fantastic to see the development in both our youngest players and our youngest coaches - the production line of talent at Banyule CC continues!

After 10 years running the Cricket Blast program I now happily sign off as Coordinator very proud of how the Blast program has helped grow our club. It's been very satisfying watching so many of our Cricket Blast Bear Cubs progress through our juniors and then develop into bonafide senior players. I really look forward to seeing this vital pathway continue in future seasons.

Thanks to all who have assisted over the years and in particular Henry Tyler, Jack Arandt, Jackson Bowler, Nick Bowler and Tom Brady who all contributed to the success of the Blast program as our on field coordinators. A special thanks to Lucas Willoughby and Brad Bowler who were always on hand to help out if I was unavailable or a BBQ needed to be fired up.

Go Bears!

Steve Pinner
Cricket Blast Coordinator (retired)

APPENDIX - BANYULE HISTORY & AWARD WINNERS

В	ANYULE CC – SENIOR PREMIERSHIPS
1 st XI (15)	1968-69 [^] (C Grade), 1976-77 (B Grade), 1979-80 (B Grade), 1983-84 (A Grade), 1984-85 (A Grade), 1987-88 (A Grade), 1988-89 (A Grade), 1989-90 (A Grade), 1992-93 (A Grade), 1994-95 (A Grade), 2000-01 (A Grade), 2001-02 (A Grade), 2007-08*, 2008-09 (A Grade), 2019-20+ (Money Shield) Runners Up x 14
2 nd XI (4)	1972-73^ (D Grade), 1994-95 (B Grade), 2005-06*, 2013-14 (D Grade) Runners Up x 9
3 rd XI (11)	1972-73 [^] (F Grade), 1993-94 (C Grade), 2000-01 (C Grade), 2002-03 (C Grade), 2003-04 (C Grade), 2006-07 (C Grade), 2008-09 (C Grade), 2013-14 (E Grade), 2017-18 (F1 Grade) 2018-19 (E Grade), 2019-20 (D Grade) Runners Up x 9
4 th XI (8)	1977-78 ((E Grade), 1984-85 (F Grade), 1987-88 (E Grade), 1997-98+ (E Grade), 2001-02 (E Grade), 2003-04 (D Grade), 2017-18 (G1 Grade), 2018-19 (F3 Grade) Runners Up x 7
5 th XI (2)	2018-19 (G4 Grade), 2019-20 (G3 Grade) Runners Up x 1
Vets XI (6)	2011-12 (A Grade), 2015-16 (A Grade), 2017-18 (A Grade), 2020-21 (A Grade), 2016-17 (B Grade), 2016-17 (D Grade) Runners Up x 8
Women's XI (1)	2024-25** (NWCA L3)

HDCA (1967-68 to 2011-12); DVCA (2012-13 to Current):

^{**}Women's Team formed in 2024-25 and entered NMCU competition winning a premiership in their debut season

BANYULE CC – JUNIOR PREMIERSHIPS				
Under 16 (12)	1974-75, 1975-76, 1981-82, 1989-90, 1991-92, 2002-03, 2004-05+,			
	2007-08, 2011-12+#, 2018-19, 2022-23, 2024-25			
Under 14 (12)	1972-73^, 1979-80, 1985-86+, 1999-00, 2001-02, 2005-06,			
	2011-12#, 2013-14, 2018-19, 2022-23 (2), 2023-24			
Under 12 (16)	1998-99+, 2000-01, 2003-04+, 2005-06, 2006-07, 2009-10#,			
	2011-12#, 2014-15, 2015-16, 2017-18, 2019-20 (2), 2020-21,			
	2021-22, 2022-23, 2023-24			
DVCA Girls (2)	2023-24 (u15's L2), 2024-25 (u15's L2)			
HDCA (1967-68 to	2011-12); DVCA (2012-13 to Current):			
^Club known as Rosanna Presbyterians;				
#HDCA changed junior grades to U13/15/17;				
+Joint Premiers				

[^]Club known as Rosanna Presbyterians;

^{*}HDCA One Day Competition;

⁺Joint Premiers

BANYULE 1st XI - 2012/13 to 2024/25 (DVCA YEARS)						
Opponent	First Played	Played	Won	Lost	Drawn	Tied
Bundoora Park	2023-24	2	0	1	1	0
Bundoora United	2012-13	9	3	6	0	0
Diamond Creek	2020-21	4	1	3	0	0
Eltham	2012-13	14	9	4	1	0
Epping	2020-21	5	1	4	0	0
Greensborough	2012-13	8	3	5	0	0
Heidelberg	2012-13	13	3	10	0	0
Hurstbridge	2012-13	4	1	3	0	0
Lalor Stars	2012-13	13	4	8	1	0
Laurimar	2023-24	1	0	0	1	0
Lower Eltham	2020-21	6	3	2	1	0
Lower Plenty	2013-14	9	5	3	1	0
Macleod	2020-21	3	1	2	0	0
Mernda	2014-15	7	4	3	0	0
Mill Park	2014-15	6	6	0	0	0
Montmorency	2012-13	10	2	5	3	0
North Eltham	2013-14	9	3	6	0	0
Old Paradians	2018-19	3	2	1	0	0
Panton Hill	2012-13	1	1	0	0	0
Plenty	2016-17	8	4	4	0	0
Research Eltham Co	2017-18	4	1	2	1	0
Riverside	2020-21	5	3	2	0	0
Rosanna	2012-13	7	2	5	0	0
Rosebank	2022-23	3	1	2	0	0
South Morang	2012-13	2	1	1	0	0
Thomastown	2013-14	3	2	1	0	0
Thomastown United	2012-13	1	1	0	0	0
Whittlesea	2012-13	3	2	1	0	0
TOTALS 163 69 84 10 0						0

BANY	BANYULE 1st XI - 1987/88 to 2023/24						
Opponent	First Played	Won	Lost	Drawn	Tied		
Banksia	1998-99	6	4	2	0	0	
Bellfield	1987-88	18	8	10	0	0	
Bundoora Park	2023-24	2	0	1	1	0	
Bundoora United	2012-13	9	3	6	0	0	
Clifton Hill	1990-91	12	8	4	0	0	
Diamond Creek	2020-21	4	1	3	0	0	
East Ivanhoe	2002-03	16	12	3	1	0	
Edinburgh	1999-00	21	14	7	0	0	
Eltham	2012-13	14	9	4	1	0	
Epping	2020-21	5	1	4	0	0	
Greensborough	1987-88	44	28	16	0	0	
Heidelberg	1987-88	58	18	37	1	2	
Heidelberg Colts	1987-88	3	1	1	1	0	
Heidelberg Soccer	1989-90	5	5	0	0	0	
Heidelberg West	1987-88	26	23	3	0	0	
Hurstbridge	2012-13	4	1	3	0	0	
Lalor Stars	2012-13	13	4	8	1	0	
Laurimar	2023-24	1	0	0	1	0	
Lower Eltham	2020-21	6	3	2	1	0	
Lower Plenty	2013-14	9	5	3	1	0	
Loyal Sylvan	1991-92	1	1	0	0	0	
Macleod	1987-88	16	10	6	0	0	
Mernda	2014-15	7	4	3	0	0	
Mill Park	2014-15	6	6	0	0	0	
Montmorency	2012-13	10	2	5	3	0	
North Alphington	1987-88	10	6	3	1	0	
North Eltham	2013-14	9	3	6	0	0	
Old Ivanhoe	2004-05	2	2	0	0	0	
Old Paradians	2018-19	3	2	1	0	0	
Olympic YC	1988-89	9	6	3	0	0	
Panton Hill	2012-13	1	1	0	0	0	
Plenty	2016-17	8	4	4	0	0	
Research Eltham Co	2017-18	4	1	2	1	0	
Riverside	2020-21	5	3	2	0	0	
Rosebank	2009-10	10	3	7	0	0	
Rosanna	1987-88	46	22	20	4	0	
South Morang	2012-13	2	1	1	0	0	
St James	1987-88	4	3	0	1	0	
Thomastown	2013-14	3	2	1	0	0	
Thomastown Utd	2012-13	1	1	0	0	0	
Watsonia Briar Hill	1998-99	1	1	0	0	0	
West Ivanhoe	1994-95	15	12	3	0	0	
Whittlesea	2012-13	3	2	1	0	0	
Yarra Valley/Viewbank	1987-88	25	16	8	1	0	
YCW	1987-88	9	6	2	0	1	
TOTALS	1001-00	486	268	195	20	3	
IOIALS		-1 00	200	133	20	•	

I	BANYULE 1st XI PARTNERSHIP RECORDS				
WKT	TOTAL	PLAYERS	YEAR		
1 ST	274	MF PHILLIPS / RD McKINLAY	1995-96		
2 ND	245	GW ANDERSON / M O'BRIEN	1987-88		
3 RD	221	GW ANDERSON / WL GIBSON	1985-86		
4 TH	237	GJ ANDERSON / BL O'CONNOR	2001-02		
5 TH	261	GJ ANDERSON / MJ VEAL	1989-90		
6 TH	138	GJ ANDERSON / PH GOULDING	1983-84		
7 TH	144	BL O'CONNOR/DP BUTTERWORTH	2001-02		
8 TH	96	CM CARROLL / MJ LOWER	2003-04		
9 TH	87	R CAMPBELL / NJ ANDERSON	1982-83		
10 TH	71	DL BARNES / SG CLAPTON	2008-09		

BANYULE CLUB PARTNERSHIP RECORDS					
WKT	TOTAL	PLAYERS	YEAR		
1 ST	274	MF PHILLIPS / RD McKINLAY	1995-96	1 st XI	
2 ND	245	GW ANDERSON / M O'BRIEN	1987-88	1st XI	
3 RD	262	CS PARRY / DM GAZZOLA	1988-89	2 nd XI	
4 TH	237	GJ ANDERSON / BL O'CONNOR	2001-02	1st XI	
5 TH	261	GJ ANDERSON / MJ VEAL	1989-90	1st XI	
6 TH	158	NP BUTTERWORTH / N MANT	1991-92	3 rd XI	
7 TH	194	GJ ANDERSON / RE KERNAGHAN	2007-08	4 th XI	
8 TH	126	PA DAVIS / BM SIER	2013-14	3 rd XI	
9 TH	109	PA DAVIS / MJ HARTE	1998-99	3 rd XI	
10 [™]	116	BD BOWLER / C APPLEBY	1984-85	3 rd XI	

	BANYULE CC – 1st XI TROPHY	WINNERS (BAT/BOWL)
Year	Batting	Bowling
2024-25	Julian J Drohan – 32.0	Brent L O'Connor – 14.1
2023-24	Connor W Braniff – 58.1	Brent L O'Connor – 20.8
2022-23	Nick P Murray – 28.9	Nick P Murray – 15.0
2021-22	Akashdeep S Cheema – 19.7	Akashdeep S Cheema – 14.6
2020-21	Brent L O'Connor – 39.0	Brent L O'Connor – 10.5
2019-20	Brent L O'Connor – 45.7	Brent L O' Connor – 7.5
2018-19	Nick P Murray – 36.3	Michael J Hannan – 15.0
2017-18	Brent L O'Connor – 43.1	Nick P Murray – 14.2
2016-17	Henry E Tyler – 28.6	Nick P Murray – 17.1
2015-16	Justin D Poyser – 22.7	Michael J Hannan – 9.8
2014-15	Paul L McMurray – 27.2	Michael J Hannan – 9.1
2013-14	Glenn D Butterworth – 28.3	Jeff N Wilson – 19.7
2012-13	Henry E Tyler – 29.0	Sam R Norman – 13.7
2011-12	Ryan J Hartnett – 25.8	Jeff N Wilson – 10.7
2010-11	Shaun M O'Connor – 25.6	Brent L O'Connor – 5.8
2009-10	Brent L O'Connor – 34.2	Brent L O'Connor – 8.1
2008-09	Brent L O'Connor – 50.7	Brent L O'Connor – 12.9
2007-08	Brent L O'Connor – 39.0	Paul L McMurray – 12.8
2006-07	Martin F Phillips – 52.3	Paul L McMurray – 13.7
2005-06	Michael A Butera – 32.6	Paul L McMurray – 12.9
2004-05	Aidan Young – 26.2	Paul L McMurray – 15.7
2003-04	Greg J Anderson – 41.9	Philip J Barnes – 11.9
2002-03	Greg J Anderson – 46.2	Brent L O'Connor – 13.0
2001-02	Greg J Anderson – 56.3	Philip J Barnes – 11.6
2000-01	Wayne L Gibson – 60.8	Philip J Barnes – 12.9
1999-00	Greg J Anderson – 52.3	Fraser G Neilson – 13.5
1998-99	Greg J Anderson – 35.5	Darren P Butterworth – 17.2
1997-98	Rodney D McKinlay – 46.3	Philip J Barnes – 18.6
1996-97	Greg J Anderson – 34.8	Philip J Barnes – 10.5
1995-96	Rodney D McKinlay – 53.2	Philip J Barnes – 13.2
1994-95	Rodney D McKinlay – 74.4	Philip J Barnes – 13.6
1993-94	Rodney D McKinlay – 48.4	Philip J Barnes – 18.1
1992-93	Graham W Anderson – 58.9	Tim P Veal – 16.4
1991-92	Graham W Anderson – 39.7	Philip J Barnes – 14.2
1990-91	Martin J Veal – 39.9	Peter H Goulding – 21.6
1989-90	Greg J Anderson – 44.4	Tim P Veal – 13.9
1988-89	Greg J Anderson – 64.3	Neil J Anderson – 13.8
1987-88	Wayne L Gibson – 48.1	Neil J Anderson – 14.7
1986-87	Peter H Goulding – 43.4	Peter H Goulding – 16.8
1985-86	Phiv Demetriou – 38.0	Neil J Anderson – 17.7
1984-85	Greg J Anderson – 49.8	Peter H Goulding – 20.3
1983-84	Greg J Anderson – 90.8	Peter H Goulding – 16.8
1982-83	Adrian Knell – 37.1	Neil J Anderson – 24.1
1981-82	Greg J Anderson – 34.6	Robert J Lloyd – 23.1
1980-81	TBC	TBC
1979-80	Rod Gurney – 36.7	Robert J Lloyd – 13.2
1978-79	TBC	TBC
1977-78	Adrian Knell – 37.1	Ken Morton – 23.9
1976-77	Rodney J Chapman – 56.9	Roger Gill – 12.3
1975-76	Ron Hayes – 33.1	Rod Gurney – 13.1
1974-75	Don H Richmond – 26.6	Merv N Anderson – 14.0
1973-74	Rod Gurney – 25.4	Merv N Anderson – 11.4
1972-73	Rod Gurney – 30.2	Rod Gurney – 12.1

APPENDIX - BANYULE CLUB RECORDS

BANYULE FIRST XI - RECORDS			
MOST GAMES	261* - Greg J Anderson		
HIGHEST CAREER BATTING AGGREGATE	8379* – Greg J Anderson		
HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE 167 – Rodney D McKinlay, 1995-96			
HIGHEST SEASON RUN AGGREGATE	775 – Martin F Phillips, 1995-96		
HIGHEST PARTNERSHIP	274 – Martin F Phillips & Rodney D McKinlay, 1995-96		
HIGHEST CAREER WICKETS AGGREGATE	534 – Philip J Barnes		
BEST BOWLING IN AN INNINGS	9/52 – Darren P Butterworth, 1998-99		
BEST BOWLING IN A MATCH	12/22 – Philip J Barnes, 1995-96		
HIGHEST SEASON WICKET AGGREGATE	49 – Philip J Barnes, 1995-96 & Michael J Hannan, 2015-16		
MOST DISMISSALS BY A WK IN A SEASON	32 - Ryan J Hartnett (30/2), 2008-09		
HIGHEST TEAM SCORE	3/439 v Macleod, 1994-95		
LOWEST SCORE BY AN OPPONENT	24 by Heidelberg West, 1996-97		
*Not Including 1980-81 Totals			

BANYULE CRICKET CLUB ALL XI's – RECORDS			
MOST GAMES	595** – Geoff R Place 551+ – David R Veal 470** – Graeme D Renshaw 397+ – Bradford L Russell 397+ – Greg J Anderson		
HIGHEST CAREER BATTING AGGREGATE	10967+ - Greg J Anderson		
HIGHEST INDIVIDUAL SCORE	207 - Darren P Butterworth, 2011-12		
HIGHEST SEASON AGGREGATE	803 - Ralph E Kernaghan, 2002-03		
HIGHEST PARTNERSHIP	274 - Martin F Phillips & Rodney D McKinlay, 1995-96		
HIGHEST CAREER WICKETS AGGREGATE	734 - Philip J Barnes		
BEST BOWLING IN AN INNINGS	9/16 – Fraser G Neilson, 2014-15		
BEST BOWLING IN A MATCH	14/22 – Fraser G Neilson, 2014-15		
MOST WICKETS IN ONE SEASON	50 – Paul A Davis, 2015-16		
HIGHEST TEAM SCORE	8/467 v St James, 1990-91 (4 th XI)		
LOWEST SCORE BY AN OPPONENT	13 by Rosanna, 2019-20 (4 th XI)		

⁺Not Including 1978-79 & 1980-81 Totals,

^{**}Not Including 1978-79 & 1980-81 and pre 1972-73 Totals. Does Not Include Junior Section Records Note – Banyule totals do not include Forfeits under PlayHQ which credit the selected player with having played.

HDCA COMPETITION AWARD WINNERS				
1988-89 - Neil Butterworth (B)	2006-07 - Brent O'Connor (A)			
1994-95 – Philip Barnes (A)	2006-07 - Bradford Russell (C)			
2000-01 - Russell Felthouse (B)	2007-08 – Paul Davis (B)			
2003-04 - Brent O'Connor (A)	2008-09 - Brent O'Connor (A)			
2004-05 - Ralph Kernaghan (D)	2011-12 – Graham Clapton (D)			
2005-06 - Greg Barnes (C)	Life Member – Don Richmond			

BANYULE CLUB CHAMPION (1991-92 Onwards)						
1991-92	G.R. Russell	2003-04	P.A. Davis	2015-16	P.A. Davis	
1992-93	G.R. Russell	2004-05	R.E. Kernaghan	2016-17	M.J. Hannan	
1993-94	N.P. Butterworth	2005-06	P.L. McMurray	2017-18	B.L. O'Connor	
1994-95	P.J. Barnes	2006-07	B.L. O'Connor	2018-19	P.A. Davis	
1995-96	P.J. Barnes	2007-08	B.L. O'Connor	2019-20	B.L. O'Connor	
1996-97	R.D. Parry	2008-09	B.L. O'Connor	2020-21	B.L. O'Connor	
1997-98	K.D. McCausland	2009-10	B.L. O'Connor	2021-22	J.G. McIntyre	
1998-99	P.A. Davis	2010-11	B.L. O'Connor	2022-23	N.P. Murray	
1999-00	D.R. Veal	2011-12	J.N. Wilson	2023-24	P.J. Cargin	
2000-01	M.F. Harte	2012-13	G.D. Butterworth	2024-25	W. Kazi	
2001-02	B.L. O'Connor	2013-14	P.A. Davis			
2002-03	R.E. Kernaghan	2014-15	F.G. Neilson			

GRA	EME RENSHAW MI	(1997-98 Onwards)	
1997-98	B.M. Sier	2011-12	J.N. Wilson
1998-99	P.A. Davis	2012-13	H.E. Tyler / M.C. Kernaghan
1999-00	D.P. Butterworth	2013-14	P.L. McMurray
2000-01	R. Felthouse	2014-15	P.A. Davis
2001-02	B.L. O'Connor	2015-16	M.J. Hannan
2002-03	R.E. Kernaghan	2016-17	G.D. Bennett / S.G. Clapton
2003-04	B.L. O'Connor	2017-18	B.L. O'Connor
2004-05	R.E. Kernaghan	2018-19	M.J. Hannan
2005-06	P.L. McMurray	2019-20	B.L. O'Connor / G.R.Place
2006-07	B.L. O'Connor	2020-21	B.L. O'Connor
2007-08	P.A. Davis / G.G. Clapton	2021-22	G.D.Cochrane / J.G.McIntyre
2008-09	B.L. O'Connor	2022-23	N.P. Murray
2009-10	B.L. O'Connor	2023-24	C.W. Braniff
2010-11	P.L. McMurray	2024-25	S.M. Pinner

APPENDIX - SPONSORS

BANYULE CRICKET CLUB THANKS ALL ITS SPONSORS & CLUB PARTNERS FOR THEIR SUPPORT IN 2024-25

















